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Consolidated Financial Highlights

*1 Net income per share and shareholders’ equity per share have been restated to reflect the retroactive effects of stock splits in July 2006.
*2 The bar chart indicates annual dividends per share (left axis), while the line chart displays the restatement of annual dividends per share to reflect the retroactive 

effects of stock splits (right axis).
*3 Please refer to p.10 for a breakdown of the number of stores.

Since opening the first Don Quijote store in 1989, Don Quijote Co., Ltd. has 

primarily engaged in business through the format of a comprehensive discount 

store based on the corporate philosophy of “Putting the Customer First.” We 

have created a one-of-a kind “consumable-time” concept that differentiates us 

from conventional distributors and retailers. This unique business format is based 

on late-night operation to meet market needs, offering a rich assortment of goods 

at deeply discounted prices, and developing stores that make shopping fun. 

During the fiscal year under review, marking our 20th anniversary, 

consolidated net sales exceeded ¥400 billion, as we added general supermarket 

operator Nagasakiya to the Group following the consolidation of home center 

Doit in the previous fiscal year. Through this continual development of new 

business formats we have taken a major step toward becoming a comprehensive 

retail group.

We look forward to completing yet another leap ahead as a comprehensive 

retail group committed to “Putting the Customer First” by maintaining a unique 

business model based on three pillars expressed as “CV+D+A,” our store 

concept that offers improved convenience (CV), deeper discounts (D), and 

greater amusement (A).
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Meeting the challenge of creating new business 
formats in our 20th anniversary year

The Don Quijote Group has flexibly and effectively promoted new store openings to enable more 

customers to discover the sheer joy of shopping through high-quality service and amusement. We 

have also been reinforcing and enhancing our internal systems to expand corporate scale. By 

converting Nagasakiya Co., LTD., with its extensive store network from Hokkaido to the Kansai 

region, into a consolidated subsidiary, we were able to increase the density of our store network 

nationwide.

During the fiscal year under review, Don Quijote Co., Ltd. opened stores in the new areas of 

Toyama, Aomori, Yamaguchi, Mie and Shiga prefectures and strengthened its existing network of 

stores. On the other hand, we closed 10 stores, particularly smaller ones, based on a review of 

business efficiency. Doit Co., Ltd. closed four stores and Nagasakiya Co., LTD. closed three. As a 

result, the number of stores operated by the Group as of the end of June 2008 included 148 stores 

managed by Don Quijote Co., Ltd., 18 stores managed by Doit Co., Ltd., and the newly added 53 

stores managed by Nagasakiya Co., LTD., bringing the total to 219 stores in 33 prefectures in 

Japan. Adding the 4 stores in Hawaii, U.S.A., brings the overall total to 223 stores (compared with 

161 stores as of the end of the previous fiscal year), a major leap in network expansion.

Expanded store network to 223 stores

Despite market conditions characterized by slowing consumption, net sales in the discount store 

business grew 12.9% year-on-year to ¥331.4 billion, as our focus on offering a flexible product 

lineup geared to the specific needs of customers and areas yielded solid sales of daily commodities 

and foods. In addition, other factors such as the DIY product line, which was brought in through the 

acquisition of Doit Co., Ltd., contributed to sales for the entire year. Our general merchandise store 

operations have also begun to augment sales, contributing ¥60.1 billion in sales for six months, of 

the term under review as a result of the consolidation of Nagasakiya Co., LTD. Moreover, our tenant 

leasing business grew significantly by 86.0% to ¥11.6 billion. As a result of these factors, 

consolidated net sales dramatically increased 34.7% year-on-year to ¥404.9 billion.

However, selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses rose 55.7% on the year to ¥92.7 

billion, as the scope of our business expanded due to the increased number of consolidated 

subsidiaries. We were able to absorb the growing SG&A costs. Operating income rose 17.6% 

year-on-year to ¥16.0 billion and recurring income rose 9.1% year-on-year to ¥17.2 billion, rising to 

new record-highs for both accounts.

Strengthening profitability while expanding business scope
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During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the retail industry in Japan remained mired in severe 

business conditions amid rising prices of such products as daily commodities and foods in the wake 

of surging costs for crude oil and other raw materials. The overall situation was further complicated 

by a setback in Japanese consumer confidence due to a slowdown in the economy and anxiety over 

the social security system.

Under these circumstances, the Don Quijote Group remained committed to our corporate 

principle of “Putting the Customer First,” and steadfastly pursued our strategy as a comprehensive 

retail group. While aggressively seeking to reinforce profitability to establish a high-profit system and 

implementing structural improvements, we also focused on expanding corporate scale and 

enhancing the Group comprehensive capabilities.

Consequently, financial results during the year under review marked the 18th consecutive year* 

of growth in sales and recurring income since we opened the first Don Quijote store. Net sales rose 

34.7% year-on-year to ¥404.9 billion and recurring income went up 9.1% to ¥17.2 billion. A 12.6% 

year-on-year decline in net income to ¥9.3 billion was caused by the combined impact of balancing 

extraordinary income and loss from the previous year and the effect of deferred tax accounting.

During the year under review, we launched the Revival Program for Nagasakiya Co., LTD., which 

became a consolidated subsidiary in October 2007. We achieved significant progress in reshaping 

our business as a comprehensive retail group, with the development of the MEGA Don Quijote, 

deep-discount daily-life necessities stores, 

as a new business format for overtaking 

the GMS. The 20th year since the opening 

of the first Don Quijote store marked a 

major turning point for further expanding 

Group capabilities for the future.
*Non-consolidated basis. On a consolidated basis, 
the fiscal year under review marked the 12th 
consecutive year of growth since we began 
consolidated accounting.

Growth in sales and income for the 18th consecutive year* 
toward yet another leap forward

In the fiscal year under review, we repurchased approximately 2.86 million shares of treasury stock 

(approximately 4% of issued and outstanding stock) to allow us to adopt a more flexible capital 

strategy. Annual dividends totaled ¥22 (interim: ¥10; year-end: ¥12) per share, up from ¥20 in the 

previous year and rising for the fifth consecutive year. As a consequence, total shareholder return 

rate, the repurchase of treasury stock and cash dividends combined, exceeded 70%. Looking 

ahead, we will continue to flexibly move forward to deliver returns to shareholders based on our 

principle of increasing corporate value and providing stable return on profit.

Annual dividend rises for fifth consecutive year;
total shareholder return rate exceeds 70%

Chairman of the Board and CEO

Takao Yasuda (on left)

President and COO

Junji Narusawa (on right)
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■History of the Group
’80 Sep. Established Just Co., Ltd.

(currently Don Quijote Co., Ltd.)

’89 Mar. Opened first Don Quijote store in Fuchu, 
Tokyo

’95 Sep. Changed corporate name to Don Quijote 
Co., Ltd.

’96 Dec. Stock registered for trading on the OTC 
market

’98 Jun. Stock listed on the Second Section of 
the Tokyo Stock Exchange

’00 Jul. Stock listed on the First Section of the 
Tokyo Stock Exchange

’01 Jul. Opened first Picasso small-scale 
discount store in Yokohama, Kanagawa

Nov. Founded PAW Creation Co., Ltd. to 
engage in the tenant management 
business

Dec. Opened first Don Quijote store in 
Fukuoka-shi, Fukuoka as first step in 
nationwide chain expansion

’02 Apr. Opened first PAW multi-business 
commercial complex in Kawasaki, 
Kanagawa

’04 Feb. Established Donki Johokan Co., Ltd. to 
engage in the retail cellular phone 
business

Sep. Established D-ONE Co., Ltd. to engage 
in the real estate business

’05 Jan. Established Donkicom Co., Ltd. (currently 
REALIT Co., Ltd.) to engage in mobile, 
Web, finance and marketing businesses

’06 Feb. Converted Don Quijote (USA) Co., Ltd. 
into a consolidated subsidiary to operate 
stores in Hawaii, U.S.A.

Sep. Relocated headquarters to 2-6-1 
Nishi-Shinjuku, Shinjuku-ku, Tokyo

’07 Jan. Converted DIY products store operator Doit 
Co., Ltd. into a consolidated subsidiary

Oct. Converted general supermarket operator 
Nagasakiya Co., LTD. into a consolidated 
subsidiary

’08 Apr. Opened first MEGA Don Quijote 
deep-discount daily-life necessities store 
in Atsugi, Kanagawa

History and Current PositionHistory and Current PositionDear Fellow Shareholders and InvestorsDear Fellow Shareholders and Investors
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Under the influence of the dramatic upheaval in the U.S. economy that began with the sub-prime 

loan crisis, the Japanese economy is showing more pronounced signs of a slowdown. Concern is 

rising that consumer confidence will decline in the face of various negative factors. The economic 

outlook, therefore, is expected to remain uncertain.

Given these circumstances, we will reinforce our position in the retail industry by concentrating 

corporate resources into invigorating existing stores and revitalizing and reviving subsidiaries 

primarily by converting existing stores into MEGA Don Quijote business formats in the coming fiscal 

year while limiting new store openings.

In overall management, we will enhance our internal control systems and forge ahead in an 

uncompromising pursuit of efficiency. At the same time, we will conduct a full-scale effort to further 

strengthen our internal management systems to establish a solid corporate foundation.

Based on these initiatives, our forecast for consolidated business results for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2009 includes a 10.6% year-on-year increase in net sales to ¥448.0 billion, a 4.6% 

increase in recurring income to ¥18.0 billion, and a 10.7% increase in net income to ¥10.3 billion.

The Don Quijote Group will continue to face every challenge to further enhance corporate value 

and increase shareholder value. We encourage all our stakeholders to join us in maintaining the 

highest expectations for the Don Quijote Group as we continue to enhance our position as a 

comprehensive retail group.

Chairman of the Board and CEO

Takao Yasuda
President and COO

Junji Narusawa

Concentrating management resources to promote 
“Deep Cultivation and Domain Expansion” for a new era

The Don Quijote Group has been effectively utilizing assets and management resources of Doit Co., 

Ltd. and Nagasakiya Co., LTD., which became consolidated subsidiaries in January and October 

2007, respectively. We will restructure operations to revitalize these subsidiaries by taking advantage 

of the Group’s unique know-how and integrating their respective strengths toward maximizing 

profits through greater customer satisfaction.

Promoting the Doit Revitalization Plan and 
the Nagasakiya Revival Program

One-of-a-kind “consumable-time”
business format extended night retail market
One-of-a-kind “consumable-time”
business format extended night retail market

Don Quijote pioneered the night market through late-night operations and introduced innovation in 

the retail industry with a unique business concept that overturns conventional wisdom in the retail 

industry. Offering a rich product selection, from daily commodities to luxury brands, as well as 

display techniques eliciting the excitement of hunting for and discovering great bargains, Don 

Quijote has achieved dramatic, ongoing growth by establishing a one-of-a-kind “consumable-time” 

business format.

Our business operating format started with the founding of a miscellaneous daily goods 

store—only 60 to 70 square meters—by Takao Yasuda (current Chairman of the Board and CEO of 

Don Quijote Co., Ltd.) in 1978. As Mr. Yasuda worked on the displays late into the night after 

operating hours, customers began showing up, believing the store was still open. Mr. Yasuda quickly 

noticed that there was a demand for late night 

hours. Our signature “compression displays” 

and hand-written, point-of purchase (POP) 

product information cards throughout the store 

originated with our distinctive efforts to meet 

customer needs in this small store.

The first Don Quijote store was opened in 

Fuchu, Tokyo, in 1989. Building on the know-how 

accumulated at this Fuchu store, a full-scale, 

multi-store operation gained momentum as the 

scope of our business expanded. In 2007, our 

acquisitions of Doit, a well-established DIY 

products store operator, and Nagasakiya, a 

general merchandise store operator, significantly 

accelerated our evolution into a comprehensive 

retail group.

The continuous growth of our business—

despite the recession in the wake of the bursting 

of the Japanese “bubble economy” and 

subsequent deflation, as well as the recent 

economic slowdown—simply followed our 

steadfast commitment to “Putting the Customer 

First” and our ability to discern the tide of the 

times and quickly respond to customer needs.

The new retail business format created by 

the Don Quijote Group’s customer-oriented 

stance has been highly acclaimed by the 

market. The Don Quijote Group was ranked 

37th in retail net sales in the 41st Japan Retail 

Business Survey*1, and Don Quijote Co., Ltd. 

ranked No. 1 with an overwhelming lead over 

other industry participants in comprehensive 

discount store net sales in the 36th Japan 

Specialized Store Survey*2.

*1 The Nikkei MJ, June 25, 2008
*2 The Nikkei MJ, July 9, 2008

Riding the tide of the times with a unique approach
that defies industry conventions
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President and COO

Junji Narusawa

Concentrating management resources to promote 
“Deep Cultivation and Domain Expansion” for a new era

The Don Quijote Group has been effectively utilizing assets and management resources of Doit Co., 

Ltd. and Nagasakiya Co., LTD., which became consolidated subsidiaries in January and October 

2007, respectively. We will restructure operations to revitalize these subsidiaries by taking advantage 

of the Group’s unique know-how and integrating their respective strengths toward maximizing 

profits through greater customer satisfaction.

Promoting the Doit Revitalization Plan and 
the Nagasakiya Revival Program

One-of-a-kind “consumable-time”
business format extended night retail market
One-of-a-kind “consumable-time”
business format extended night retail market

Don Quijote pioneered the night market through late-night operations and introduced innovation in 

the retail industry with a unique business concept that overturns conventional wisdom in the retail 

industry. Offering a rich product selection, from daily commodities to luxury brands, as well as 

display techniques eliciting the excitement of hunting for and discovering great bargains, Don 

Quijote has achieved dramatic, ongoing growth by establishing a one-of-a-kind “consumable-time” 

business format.

Our business operating format started with the founding of a miscellaneous daily goods 

store—only 60 to 70 square meters—by Takao Yasuda (current Chairman of the Board and CEO of 

Don Quijote Co., Ltd.) in 1978. As Mr. Yasuda worked on the displays late into the night after 

operating hours, customers began showing up, believing the store was still open. Mr. Yasuda quickly 

noticed that there was a demand for late night 

hours. Our signature “compression displays” 

and hand-written, point-of purchase (POP) 

product information cards throughout the store 

originated with our distinctive efforts to meet 

customer needs in this small store.

The first Don Quijote store was opened in 

Fuchu, Tokyo, in 1989. Building on the know-how 

accumulated at this Fuchu store, a full-scale, 

multi-store operation gained momentum as the 

scope of our business expanded. In 2007, our 

acquisitions of Doit, a well-established DIY 

products store operator, and Nagasakiya, a 

general merchandise store operator, significantly 

accelerated our evolution into a comprehensive 

retail group.

The continuous growth of our business—

despite the recession in the wake of the bursting 

of the Japanese “bubble economy” and 

subsequent deflation, as well as the recent 

economic slowdown—simply followed our 

steadfast commitment to “Putting the Customer 

First” and our ability to discern the tide of the 

times and quickly respond to customer needs.

The new retail business format created by 

the Don Quijote Group’s customer-oriented 

stance has been highly acclaimed by the 

market. The Don Quijote Group was ranked 

37th in retail net sales in the 41st Japan Retail 

Business Survey*1, and Don Quijote Co., Ltd. 

ranked No. 1 with an overwhelming lead over 

other industry participants in comprehensive 

discount store net sales in the 36th Japan 

Specialized Store Survey*2.

*1 The Nikkei MJ, June 25, 2008
*2 The Nikkei MJ, July 9, 2008

Riding the tide of the times with a unique approach
that defies industry conventions
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Evolving into a comprehensive retail group
based on the Don Quijote DNA

The Don Quijote Group has pursued “Deep Cultivation and Domain Expansion”—seeking greater 

depth and opening new domains—as the basic principle of our management strategy. We have 

enjoyed continuous growth by developing a variety of store formats that correspond with 

commercial areas, scale and location characteristics in cultivating new markets.

To date, we have responded to diverse commercial environments by selectively applying three 

store formats—our flagship business format Don Quijote discount 

stores, PAW late-night shopping malls and small-scale Picasso 

stores.

In the previous fiscal year, Doit home center, which operates 

stores in the Greater Tokyo Metropolitan area, joined the Group’s 

store network. This year, Nagasakiya general merchandise store, 

with its broad presence stretching from Hokkaido to the Kansai 

region, was added to the network. We also launched MEGA Don 

Quijote deep-discount daily-life necessities stores, as a new 

business format offering a large variety and volume of extremely 

low-priced goods that match the needs of the time. We have 

launched our next leap forward as a comprehensive retail group 

based on the Don Quijote DNA.

Expanding the scope of our business
through varied store formats

Since Doit Co., Ltd. became a consolidated Group subsidiary in January 2007, we have steadily 

conducted a restructuring program, which is already bearing fruit.

To improve corporate profit, we are simultaneously streamlining operations and enhancing the 

level of control to establish a stronger business structure. We are developing a new business model 

by instilling complete commitment to a “customer first” philosophy, developing human resources by 

delegating authority, leveraging our speciality in DIY product assortment, and continually improving 

floor layout and product displays for a more entertaining customer experience. With respect to store 

development, we have sought to enhance business performance based on three patterns 

corresponding to specific commercial area characteristics and store location—conversion into Don 

Quijote stores, conversion into dual Doit-Don Quijote stores, and renewal into new Doit stores by 

reviewing product selection.

Looking ahead, we will focus on revitalizing the new Doit stores by enhancing the lineup of 

professional-use DIY products centered on tools and hardware as well as gardening products, and 

by offering a combination of daily commodities and foods. Depending on the commercial 

environment, we will also seek conversions into MEGA Don Quijote stores (see next page) to 

reinforce our business structure for boosting profit.

Restructuring effort results in a reborn Doit

Doit Higashiomiya store after renewal

Don Quijote Mizonokuchi-ekimae store 
managed by Nagasakiya Co., LTD.

MEGA Don Quijote Misato store Mass display of food and daily
necessities at “astonishingly low
prices”

Strengthening professional-use
DIY products

Expanded lineup of gardening products

We turned Nagasakiya Co., LTD., a major operator of Nagasakiya general merchandise stores, into a 

consolidated subsidiary in October 2007, and launched a restructuring plan, the Nagasakiya Revival 

Program. To ensure Nagasakiya’s successful recovery, through selection and concentration of its 

corporate resources, restructuring of merchandizing by reducing product costs and reviewing product 

composition has been implemented. We are also reengineering its business processes by fundamentally 

reforming selling, general and administrative expenses, reviewing and consolidating operations, and 

promoting greater efficiency. We are committed to revitalizing existing stores and encouraging changes 

in corporate and employee awareness, as well as creating a new business model.

With respect to store development, we made an overall determination in light of specific commercial 

area characteristics, store location and level of profitability, and launched a revival plan based on three 

store formats, including the development of new business models. First, we will introduce the Don 

Quijote format mainly in stores located by the entrances of train stations. Second, we will maintain the 

Nagasakiya store format while seeking Group synergy in terms of product composition toward 

establishing new model stores that emphasize higher operational efficiency. Finally, we will seek 

conversion into MEGA Don Quijote stores, the Don Quijote Group’s latest challenge in 

business model creation.

We made a promising start during the fiscal year under review with the completed 

conversions of four stores, including Don Quijote and MEGA Don Quijote store formats.

Looking ahead, we will build on Nagasakiya’s customer base and brand power while 

flexibly implementing renewal plans best suited to each store’s commercial area and location 

to expand our business domain and maximize the Don Quijote Group’s corporate value.

Launching the Nagasakiya Revival Program

The MEGA Don Quijote is a deep-discount daily-life necessities store format developed by Don 

Quijote Group, taking full advantage of the sales capabilities of each Group company to offer 

significantly enhanced strengths in product procurement and selection on the sales floor. This   

affords an overwhelming cost advantage allowing us to compete with major suburban GMS. 

Responding to a trend toward consumer entrenchment, we offer basic necessities for daily life, 

including our “MEGA-class” product lineup at “astonishingly low prices.”

A total of three MEGA Don Quijote stores have been opened, starting with the Atsugi store in 

April 2008, followed by the Yotsukaido and Misato stores in June.

We display items such as food, daily necessities and clothing at “astonishingly cheap” prices in  

large volumes inside a spacious shopping space, in which it is easy to get around. We will seek to 

cut back selling, general and administrative expenses through simplified and efficient display 

methods and logistics to maintain the sense of amusement offered by Don Quijote. In addition, we 

will offer the convenience of late-night operations, mixing shopping with a purpose and impulse 

purchases to offer a shopping experience that is fun for the price.

Overtaking GMS—the MEGA Don Quijote concept
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We turned Nagasakiya Co., LTD., a major operator of Nagasakiya general merchandise stores, into a 

consolidated subsidiary in October 2007, and launched a restructuring plan, the Nagasakiya Revival 

Program. To ensure Nagasakiya’s successful recovery, through selection and concentration of its 

corporate resources, restructuring of merchandizing by reducing product costs and reviewing product 

composition has been implemented. We are also reengineering its business processes by fundamentally 

reforming selling, general and administrative expenses, reviewing and consolidating operations, and 

promoting greater efficiency. We are committed to revitalizing existing stores and encouraging changes 

in corporate and employee awareness, as well as creating a new business model.

With respect to store development, we made an overall determination in light of specific commercial 

area characteristics, store location and level of profitability, and launched a revival plan based on three 

store formats, including the development of new business models. First, we will introduce the Don 

Quijote format mainly in stores located by the entrances of train stations. Second, we will maintain the 

Nagasakiya store format while seeking Group synergy in terms of product composition toward 

establishing new model stores that emphasize higher operational efficiency. Finally, we will seek 

conversion into MEGA Don Quijote stores, the Don Quijote Group’s latest challenge in 

business model creation.

We made a promising start during the fiscal year under review with the completed 

conversions of four stores, including Don Quijote and MEGA Don Quijote store formats.

Looking ahead, we will build on Nagasakiya’s customer base and brand power while 

flexibly implementing renewal plans best suited to each store’s commercial area and location 

to expand our business domain and maximize the Don Quijote Group’s corporate value.

Launching the Nagasakiya Revival Program

The MEGA Don Quijote is a deep-discount daily-life necessities store format developed by Don 

Quijote Group, taking full advantage of the sales capabilities of each Group company to offer 

significantly enhanced strengths in product procurement and selection on the sales floor. This   

affords an overwhelming cost advantage allowing us to compete with major suburban GMS. 

Responding to a trend toward consumer entrenchment, we offer basic necessities for daily life, 

including our “MEGA-class” product lineup at “astonishingly low prices.”

A total of three MEGA Don Quijote stores have been opened, starting with the Atsugi store in 

April 2008, followed by the Yotsukaido and Misato stores in June.

We display items such as food, daily necessities and clothing at “astonishingly cheap” prices in  

large volumes inside a spacious shopping space, in which it is easy to get around. We will seek to 

cut back selling, general and administrative expenses through simplified and efficient display 

methods and logistics to maintain the sense of amusement offered by Don Quijote. In addition, we 

will offer the convenience of late-night operations, mixing shopping with a purpose and impulse 

purchases to offer a shopping experience that is fun for the price.

Overtaking GMS—the MEGA Don Quijote concept



Don Quijote Group’s nationwide store opening strategy rides on the twin wheels of securing 

dominance in urban areas for greater efficiency and increasing the number of store locations. During 

the fiscal year under review, we sought to expand our store network in existing operations while 

aggressively entering new areas to open stores in Toyama, Aomori, Yamaguchi, Mie and Shiga 

prefectures.

During the fiscal year under review, we also developed the MEGA Don Quijote deep-discount 

daily-life necessities store as a new format. Starting with the opening of the MEGA Don Quijote 

Atsugi store in April 2008, we opened a total of three stores for the consolidated Group by June 30, 

2008.

The number of stores operated by Group companies as of June 30, 2008, included 148 stores 

operated by Don Quijote Co., Ltd. (23 new openings, including 4 format conversions and 10 

closures), 18 stores operated by Doit Co., Ltd. (4 closures), and 53 stores operated by Nagasakiya 

Co., LTD. (4 format conversions and 3 closures). This gives the Group a total of 219 stores in 33 

prefectures nationwide. Four stores in Hawaii, U.S.A., bring the total to 223 stores, compared with 

157 stores as of the end of the previous fiscal year, giving our store network an overwhelming 

presence in the retail industry.

For the next fiscal year we plan to limit the number of new openings during the year as we focus 

on revitalizing our existing stores and restructuring and reviving our subsidiaries. We project store 

renovations for store format conversion at around 25 to 30 stores for the entire Group.

We intend to maintain our store opening strategy and promote new openings and format 

conversions that correspond with specific locations to reinforce our sales capability throughout the 

entire Group.

Consolidated Group expands to 223 stores

Expanding into new areas and
launching new format stores
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Stores opened by
Don Quijote Co., Ltd.
in new locations

Toyama store (Toyama Prefecture)
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Putting the Customer First

Convenience

AmusementDiscounts

Business hours and 
business days

Product assortment
Store location

New discoveries
Surprises

News

Reasonable prices
Comfortable feeling
High expectations

Corporate philosophy: Putting the Customer First

Store concept: ＋ ＋
Store

Customers

Customers’ needs

Products and services
• Late-night operation
• Abundant assortment 

of products
• Discount prices
• Unique in-store presentation
• Fun in shopping for itself

Business ModelBusiness Model
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Don Quijote believes “Putting the Customer First” is an integral part of its corporate philosophy and 

has engaged in customer-oriented store creation since its foundation. Positioning this stance as a 

steadfast principle, instead of an abstract goal, creates the foundation for constructing everything 

else, from management to store operation methods. The impact can be seen in the conduct of 

operations that emphasize the night retail market, as well as in the selection of products and store 

operation methods that are free from an excessive fixation on efficiency. We believe the approach of 

“Putting the Customer First” has an effective appeal in today’s business environment and opens 

significant opportunities for exploring new markets.

It is critical for store management to accurately discern customer needs and be prepared to concretely 

respond to them. One result of faithfully acting with this mindset was the discovery of the night retail 

market, that is, the late-night sales operations that have emerged as our home field advantage.

This opportunity completely overturns the conventional wisdom that you can’t sell at night. The 

night retail market resulted from earnestly addressing underlying needs by noting the number of 

customers who mistakenly tried to enter the store late at night while we were preparing for the next 

day with the lights on.

Don Quijote stores are most crowded during the hours after sunset, with sales from 8 p.m. to 

closing accounting for approximately 50% of total sales. As employment patterns have diversified in 

recent years, the number of single-person households has increased, leading to a further change in 

lifestyle in the society as a whole that continues to provide a steady boost in demand for the night 

retail market.

These efforts to sensitively grasp customer needs and the changes of the times are the 

foundation of our approach for creating stores that attract customers.

Our unique “CV+D+A” store concept drives store development efforts with unprecedented expertise 

based on our corporate philosophy of “Putting the Customer First.” A continuous cycle of action and 

verification enables us to rapidly discern the needs of customers as they change with the times and 

quickly incorporate what we learn into store operations.

This positive cycle is deeply rooted in “Putting the Customer First” and was designed to develop 

store operations that satisfy customers by gaining insight into how they think. The effective 

application of this cycle enables us to flexibly respond to changes in the commercial environment 

and consumer perceptions, reinforcing a significant marketing advantage.

Don Quijote has maintained the unique store concept “CV+D+A,” which offers customers greater 

convenience (CV), greater discounts (D), and greater amusement (A).

Our stores offer convenience through late-night operations and an abundant assortment of 

products; discount prices that meet customer expectations; and amusement, a festival-like 

atmosphere through in-store presentations, such as “compression displays,” that display an 

abundant cornucopia of products, from floor to ceiling. Our stores are not just shopping places to 

meet immediate needs; they are “consumable-time” places for enjoying the sheer joy of shopping in 

itself. Retail staff are committed to carrying out store operations that attract customers through 

consistently creative efforts based on this “CV+D+A” concept.

Unique business model based on a corporate 
philosophy of “Putting the Customer First”

Regarding “Putting the Customer First” as a fundamental 
corporate philosophy, not an abstract goal

Discovering the gold mine of the night retail market 
by discerning customer needs

Implementing a three-phase cycle of customers, stores, and 
company based on our philosophy of “Putting the Customer First”

Our “CV+D+A” store concept—greater convenience, 
greater discounts, and greater amusement in shopping
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The standard sales floor space of our flagship Don Quijote stores model is from 1,000 to 1,500 

square meters. Within this limited space, we offer broad product lineups as a comprehensive 

discount store, featuring a very enjoyable interior with “compression displays,” which present a great 

number of products in overwhelming volume. Compression displays enable us to provide 

approximately 40,000 items in a single store as many as 50,000 to 60,000 items in large-scale 

stores, placing us on par with general merchandise stores with greater sales spaces. We make 

maximum use of space by applying various methods, including three-dimensional displays using 

walls and ceilings and assortment displays that combine several types of products.

These types of displays are diametrically opposed to the “easy to see, understand and 

purchase” method taught in retail business textbooks and create a virtual “jungle” of products inside 

the store. Compression displays, which were born from our lack of backyards for store inventory, 

had the effect of offering customers, “the joy of searching for products,” and have come to 

symbolize Don Quijote.

Compression displays are not the same as “confused displays” in which products are piled up for no 

apparent reason. The interiors of our stores are designed to create an “intentional product jungle” by 

calculating and considering such factors as the order and 

combination of product displays, the content of 

hand-written, point-of-purchase (POP) product information 

cards, which incorporate our accumulated know-how, 

and the visible appearance of products on the shelf. In 

particular, unique hand-written cards with attractive copy 

that highlights each product’s features are written by 

specialized staff members to function as “clues” in the 

treasure hunt and to generate maximum impact in 

motivating customers to purchase products.

The act of searching, discovering and selecting in an 

intentional product jungle is precisely what stimulates the 

joy of shopping that lies in the heart of every customer. 

The excitement experienced in childhood—rushing into a 

candy store with small change gripped in one’s hand—is 

the joy component embodied in the Don Quijote store 

concept.

To always offer customers the experience of discovery, Don Quijote constantly practices creating 

sales floors featuring “Something New.” Our product strategy of 60% basic products 40% spot 

products enables us to offer new discoveries while also providing customers with the comforting 

feeling that they can always find anything they are looking for. Spot products, although less 

well-known, are comparable in functions and levels of quality to well-recognized brands and 

therefore available at deeply discounted prices. They are offered during limited sales periods or in 

limited quantities, and the search for these products contributes to the adventure experience 

accessible through our product assortment, which provides opportunities for unexpected 

discoveries.

We are naturally making an effort to quickly provide timely products while also flexibly varying 

store layout and product location to maintain a sense of freshness on the sales floor.

In terms of pricing, we are taking on the challenge of EDLP (Every Day Low Prices) as the “Super 

Savings Emporium” in the intensely competitive retail industry. Through our “Donki’s Lowest Price 

Guarantee,” we reimburse customers the difference in price if a rival store sells the same product for 

less than our prices. This concept generates customer confidence in our pricing.

Unique store development offers the joy of treasure hunting 
while offering the excitement of discovering products

Broad product lineups and a sense of great product volume 
created by “compression displays”

Creating a “jungle treasure hunt” for products

Using spot products to offer “Something New”
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In light of the increasing number of customers from overseas in recent 

years, we enhanced our services for this market during the fiscal year 

under review. We began providing duty-free sales at all Don 

Quijote-branded stores nationwide and plan to expand to affiliated 

Group companies. To respond to the particular needs of Chinese 

travelers, we installed payment terminals for the China Union Pay 

Card*1 at stores in the Tokyo Metropolitan Area and major cities 

throughout Japan starting in June 2008 (19 stores as of September 

2008). We also launched corporate websites in English, Chinese*2 

and Korean, and placed multilingual signs inside our stores for the 

convenience of overseas tourists seeking good deals.

*1 China Union Pay brand cash cards issued by Chinese banks, owned by almost all Chinese tourists
*2 Simplified Chinese and traditional Chinese

We at Don Quijote recognize strengthening corporate governance as a vital management task that 

will enable us to maximize corporate value through an unwavering commitment to our corporate 

philosophy of “Putting the Customer First.” Therefore, we continually develop and reinforce our 

systems of corporate governance.

To ensure appropriate execution of Director responsibilities, we maintain a CCO (Chief Compliance 

Officer), who oversees compliance and internal control matters, and four outside auditors. We have 

also established an Internal Audit Department and a Compliance Department for increasing employee 

awareness and knowledge. In addition, our “Gohatto 110 system” provides a safe channel for 

employees to report activities that may violate laws or corporate regulations to an appropriate external 

institution. Based on a cross-organizational analysis and assessment of risk for the entire Group, we 

are establishing organizational and operational systems as required for managing risks and 

implementing a Group-wide effort to ensure appropriate conduct.

We conduct business with due consideration for society and the environment. To determine 

operation hours of new Don Quijote stores, which are characterized by late-night operations, we 

analyze commercial environments and location attributes and take into account opinions from local 

residents. In addition, steps are taken to address issues such as traffic flow and noise level during 

creation and operation of our stores.

We were quick to recognize the environmental impact of late-night operations and have started a 

verification project with the cooperation of academic institutions on energy saving and reduction of 

CO2 emissions. In the fiscal year under review, we confirmed an 8% reduction in annual electricity 

usage in test stores by adjusting air conditioning to suit the number of visitors and by controlling power 

sources based on electrical appliances per circuit. To further reduce energy consumption, we already 

have installed equipment for dynamically adjusting voltage and conserving water in our stores.

A Socially Responsible CorporationA Socially Responsible CorporationTopicsTopics

The “bis” series is our private brand of household electronics, furniture and 

interior goods. Based on the concept of “buy casually, live casually,” we offer a 

lineup of products ranging from those that emphasize functionality to others 

that afford greater convenience. Three types of guarantees are available: an 

additional second year of coverage on top of the manufacturer’s one-year 

guarantee, replacement with a new product within 90 days of purchase, and 

parts purchase free of charge within 30 days of purchase. The major point of 

differentiation from the competition is the provision of quality products with a 

sense of security. Sales under this brand started in December 2007 centered 

on approximately 50 household electronics products. Today, an expanded 

lineup includes interior goods and daily commodities for meeting customer 

needs at an even higher level.

We introduced the Mobile Coupon Service at nearly all our stores to further enhance customer 

satisfaction. This service links in-store coupon issuing machines with Club Donpen Mobile, our 

free, membership mobile site. Customers who register with this site can obtain coupons from 

easy-to-operate machines right there at the store and enjoy even deeper discounts on specified 

items. With items rotated each week, the fun of choosing increases the overall amusement value. 

Since launching the service, more than a 

million members have joined as of April 

2008 at a pace of about 100,000 new 

subscribers every month. The service is 

helping to retain loyal customers, attract 

new ones and boost sales.

Promoting customer oriented services 
and product development

Full-scale launch of the Mobile Coupon Service

Don Quijote’s private brand “bis” makes its debut

Better services for foreign tourists as Japan’s grand 
souvenir center

A sound corporation that coexists 
with society and the environment

Don Quijote’s corporate governance

Consideration for society and the environment
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Five-year Summary (Consolidated data)
Years ended June 30

FINANCIAL SECTION

Millions of yen
Millions of
U.S. dollars

2004 2005 2006 2007 20082008 20082008

For the fi scal year

Net sales ¥192,840 ¥232,778 ¥260,779 ¥300,660 ¥404,924¥404,924 $3,844$3,844

Cost of goods sold 148,543 179,330 200,425 227,537 296,215296,215 2,8122,812

Selling, general and 
administrative expenses 33,686 42,634 48,500 59,537 92,72892,728 880880

Operating income 10,611 10,814 11,854 13,586 15,98115,981 152152

Recurring income 12,598 12,841 14,396 15,774 17,20417,204 163163

Income before income taxes 12,368 12,690 17,808 18,817 16,64016,640 158158

Net income 6,846 7,163 10,725 10,638 9,3039,303 8888

At year-end

Total assets ¥126,774 ¥150,048 ¥167,534 ¥209,865 ¥276,288¥276,288 $2,623$2,623

Shareholders’ equity 41,738 52,128 72,741 82,470 84,62584,625 803803

Per share* Yen U.S. dollars

Basic earnings ¥ 116.28 ¥ 112.25 ¥ 158.31 ¥148.89 ¥130.78¥130.78 $1.24$1.24

Diluted earnings 102.89 96.10 140.66 138.32 122.00122.00 1.161.16

Cash dividends 10.00 13.33 16.67 20.00 22.0022.00 0.210.21

Cash dividends 
(before retroactive restatement) 30.00 40.00 50.00 20.00 22.0022.00 0.210.21

Key ratios %

ROA 9.6 7.8 7.5 7.1 6.56.5

ROE 18.5 15.3 17.2 13.7 11.311.3
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Consolidated Business Results
In the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 (July 1, 2007 to June 30, 2008), Don Quijote Co., Ltd. and its 
consolidated subsidiaries reported net sales of ¥404.9 billion, operating income of ¥16.0 billion and 
recurring income of ¥17.2 billion, equivalent to year-on-year increases of 34.7%, 17.6% and 9.1%, 
respectively. These fi gures marked the 18th consecutive year* of increased revenues since the opening of 
the fi rst Don Quijote store.

Net sales rose considerably, reaching the ¥400 billion mark for the fi rst time, due to the aggressive 
openings of new stores, a full-year contribution from home center operator Doit Co., Ltd., which became 
a consolidated subsidiary during the course of the previous fi scal year, and a six-month contribution from 
superstore operator Nagasakiya Co., LTD., a consolidated subsidiary since October 2007. However, existing 
stores continued to operate under pressure from a product policy review and dramatic changes in the 
consumption climate. Net sales for existing stores declined 3.3% compared with the previous fi scal year, 
while the number of customers fell 2.2% and spending per customer fell 1.2% year-on-year.

With respect to the total number of stores under consolidation, although we added 23 new stores 
managed by Don Quijote Co., Ltd., including 4 format conversions and 56 stores managed by Nagasakiya 
Co., LTD., we closed 17 stores based on a policy of operational effi ciency centered on small-scale stores 
and unprofitable stores. As a result, we operated a total of 219 stores in Japan as of June 30, 2008. 
Combined with the 4 stores in Hawaii, the number of Group-operated stores totaled 223, compared with 
161 stores in the previous fi scal year.

By business segment, the Discount Store Operations reported net sales of ¥331.4 billion, an increase 
of 12.9% year-on-year, and operating income of ¥13.9 billion. This was due to steady sales of foods and 
daily commodities, and a full-year contribution to sales of DIY products resulting from the acquisition of 
Doit Co., Ltd. The Superstore Operations emerged as a new business segment following the conversion of 
Nagasakiya Co., LTD. into a consolidated subsidiary. In the fi scal year under review, Nagasakiya’s profi t and 
loss fi gures for the period November 2007 to April 2008 were refl ected in the consolidated accounts. This 
segment reported net sales of ¥60.1 billion and operating income of ¥600 million. 

* Non-consolidated basis. On a consolidated basis, the fi scal year under review marked the 12th consecutive year of growth 
since we began consolidated accounting.

Management Discussion and Analysis

Sales by product category (Millions of yen)

Sales and composition by product category (Millions of yen, %)

DS operations–
Electrical appliances

DS operations–
Daily commodities/foods

DS operations–
Watches and fashion merchandise/
Sporting goods and leisure equipment

DS operations–
Overseas

Rental
business
operations

Others Superstore
operations

DS operations–
DIY products

’06

’07

’08

51,531 106,450 89,231 2,807 5,539 5,221

4,612

260,779

300,660

404,924

19,28053,497 114,955 96,595 6,211 5,510

51,952 125,869 102,721 11,554 6,44019,81626,480 60,092

2007 20082008
Net sales Percentage Net salesNet sales PercentagePercentage

Discount store operations 293,565 97.64 331,446 331,446 81.8581.85
Electrical appliances 53,497 17.79 51,952 51,952 12.8312.83
Daily commodities 63,145 21.00 68,320 68,320 16.8716.87
Foods 51,810 17.23 57,549 57,549 14.2114.21
Watches and fashion merchandise 75,816 25.22 80,785 80,785 19.9519.95
Sporting goods and leisure equipment 20,779 6.91 21,936 21,936 5.425.42
DIY products 4,612 1.53 26,480 26,480 6.546.54
Overseas 19,280 6.41 19,816 19,816 4.894.89
Other products 4,626 1.55 4,608 4,608 1.141.14

Superstore operations – – 60,092 60,092 14.8414.84
Clothing – – 18,391 18,391 4.544.54
Groceries – – 27,008 27,008 6.676.67
Housing commodities – – 10,800 10,800 2.672.67
Others – – 3,893 3,893 0.960.96

Rental business operations 6,211 2.07 11,554 11,554 2.852.85
Other operations 884 0.29 1,832 1,832 0.460.46
Total 300,660 100.00 404,924 404,924 100.00100.00

* Sales of Others is combined total of Other products and Other operations.
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The Rental Business Operations reported net sales of ¥11.6 billion, an increase of 86.0% year-on-year, 
and operating income of ¥800 million. This was due to an increase in the number of tenants resulting from 
new store openings and the addition of Nagasakiya Co., LTD. to the Group. As a result, consolidated net 
sales rose considerably to ¥404.9 billion, up 34.7% from the previous fi scal year.

Gross profi t margin rose signifi cantly by 2.5 percentage points to 26.8%, as we offset the negative 
effects of surging costs and valuation loss based on lowest cost accounting with the positive impact of 
contributions made by Nagasakiya, which became a consolidated subsidiary during the fi scal year under 
review, and reinforcements made to our purchasing system. In contrast, selling, general and administrative 
(SG&A) expenses rose 55.7% on the year to ¥92.7 billion, as higher personnel costs and rent followed 
the increased number of consolidated subsidiaries. The improvement in gross profi t margin enabled us 
to absorb the rise in costs associated with business expansion, and as a result, we reported an operating 
income of ¥16.0 billion, an increase of 17.6% year-on-year, and an operating income margin of 3.9%. The 
balance of non-operating income and expenses was ¥1.2 billion, and we achieved a 9.1% year-on-year 
increase in recurring income to ¥17.2 billion and a recurring income margin of 4.2%.

While we reported extraordinary income of ¥2.3 billion, we also reported extraordinary losses totaling 
¥2.9 billion from losses on store closures, loss on disposal of fi xed assets and impairment loss from a 
review of operational effi ciency and the restructuring and revival of subsidiaries. As a result, we reported 
a net extraordinary loss of ¥600 million, compared with a net extraordinary income of ¥3.0 billion in the 
previous fi scal year. Consequently, due to the repercussions from balancing extraordinary income and loss 
and the additional impact of deferred tax accounting, net income fell 12.6% year-on-year to ¥9.3 billion.

In the fi scal year ending June 30, 2009, we project consolidated net income of ¥448.0 billion (a year-
on-year increase of 10.6%), operating income of ¥17.0 billion (up 6.4%), recurring income of ¥18.0 billion 
(up 4.6%) and net income of ¥10.3 billion (up 10.7%). We will limit new store openings to about 6 stores 
to concentrate our management resources into revitalizing existing stores and restructuring and reviving 
subsidiaries. In addition, we intend to forge ahead with optimal store format conversion and renovation, 
and will strive to reinforce our store sales capabilities and cost competitiveness toward maintaining 
signifi cant increases in revenues.

Gross profi t (Millions of yen) 

Gross profi t margin (%) 

Total sales fl oor space (m2) 

Number of stores 

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

0

100,000

200,000

300,000

400,000

500,000

600,000

80

110

140

170

200

230

260

’04 ’05 ’06 ’07 ’08

(%)

44,297

23.0

53,448

23.1

24.3

26.8

60,354

73,123

108,709

23.0

(Millions of yen)

’04 ’05 ’06 ’07 ’08

(Stores)

116,516
135,770

(m2)

93

107

126

161

223

187,803

271,970

573,466



21
Don Quijote Co., Ltd.   Annual Report 2008

Financial Position
Total assets as of the end of the fi scal year under review (June 30, 2008) increased by ¥66.4 billion from 
the previous fi scal year to ¥276.3 billion, a year-on-year increase of 31.7%. This was due to investments 
in new store openings and business expansion beyond the next fi scal year, as well as an increase in assets 
totaling ¥52.2 billion that accompanied the transformation of Nagasakiya Co., LTD. into a consolidated 
subsidiary.

Current assets increased by ¥19.4 billion to ¥116.6 billion. This is largely attributable to a signifi cant 
increase in sales fl oor space resulting from aggressive new store development and the addition of stores 
operated by Group subsidiaries, as well as an increase of ¥16.4 billion in inventory.

Fixed assets increased by a total of ¥27.8 billion to ¥102.6 billion, due to the addition of ¥7.8 billion 
in buildings and ¥10.0 billion in land owned by Nagasakiya Co., LTD., as well as the acquisition of land 
associated with the PAW Kawasaki store and the Kaheka store in Hawaii. Investments and other assets 
rose ¥18.4 billion to ¥53.9 billion, primarily due to an increase of ¥18.8 billion in fi xed leasehold deposits 
resulting from a rise in the number of stores and the acquisition of Nagasakiya Co., LTD.

Total liabilities as of the end of the fiscal year under review increased by ¥64.3 billion from the 
previous fi scal year to ¥191.7 billion. While accounts payable-trade rose by ¥10.5 billion due to an increase 
in inventory purchases associated with the transformation of Nagasakiya Co., LTD. into a consolidated 
subsidiary, the current portion of bond repayment decreased by ¥17.6 billion as we boosted long-term 
funding. Consequently, current liabilities declined by ¥200 million to ¥73.0 billion. Long-term liabilities 
increased by ¥64.4 billion to ¥118.7 billion, due to the issuance of bonds totaling ¥50.5 billion. This 
included both public and private placements, in addition to the reporting of ¥4.7 billion in negative 
goodwill. Net liabilities were ¥74.6 billion as of the end of the fi scal year under review. Excluding zero-
coupon convertible bonds, the net total of interest-bearing debt was ¥80.9 billion, the ratio of interest-
bearing debt to total assets rose from 20.8% to 29.3% in the previous fi scal year, and the debt-to-equity 
ratio rose from 52.9% to 95.6% .

Total assets as of June 30, 2008 increased by ¥2.2 billion from the previous fi scal year to ¥84.6 billion, 
as accumulated retained earnings were used to repurchase ¥5.0 billion in treasury stock. The equity ratio 
was 30.0%, and return on equity (ROE) was 11.3%.

Total assets (Millions of yen) 
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Cash Flows
Net cash generated by operating activities during the fi scal year ended June 30, 2008 amounted to ¥7.8 
billion, a decrease of ¥8.0 billion from the previous fi scal year, as an increase of ¥7.4 billion in depreciation 
were offset by signifi cantly higher inventory and income taxes paid.

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to ¥39.0 billion, due to aggressive expansion in our 
store network, increases in strategic investments and the acquisition of Nagasakiya Co., LTD. stock.

Net cash generated by fi nancing activities totalled ¥31.4 billion, an increase of ¥11.9 billion from the 
previous fi scal year, due to increases in long-term funding, such as bonds and long-term debt, which offset 
the ¥5.0 billion used to repurchase treasury stock.

As a result of these cash fl ows, cash and cash equivalents as of the end of the fi scal year under review 
totaled ¥38.1 billion, a decrease of ¥100 million from the previous fi scal year.

Capital Investment
In the fi scal year ended June 30, 2008, capital investment increased by ¥7.4 billion year-on-year to ¥28.5 
billion, as we aggressively expanded our business through new store openings and M&A. Net investment 
after recovery of leasehold deposits amounted to ¥26.4 billion. Free cash fl ows (net income after taxes + 
depreciation and amortization + extraordinary loss – cash dividends) increased by ¥3.3 billion year-on-
year to ¥17.5 billion.

In the fi scal year ending June 30, 2009, we plan to limit new store openings to about 6 stores to focus 
on store format conversions and renovations. We project a capital investment of ¥13.0 billion. Capital 
investment will therefore considerably decrease, and we expect to be able to implement our plans within 
the limits of our operating cash fl ows.
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To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors 
of Don Quijote Co., Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Don Quijote Co.,Ltd. and its subsidiaries 
as of June 30, 2007 and 2008, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity, 
and cash fl ows for each of the two years through the period ended June 30, 2008, all expressed in yen. 
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated fi nancial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the fi nancial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall fi nancial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable 
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated fi nancial statements referred to above, expressed in yen, present fairly, 
in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Don Quijote Co.,Ltd. and subsidiaries at 
June 30, 2007 and 2008, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash fl ows for each of 
the two years through the period ended June 30, 2008, in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles in Japan.

And also, in our opinion, the accompanying consolidated fi nancial statements expressed in yen have 
been translated into U.S. dollars on the basis set forth in Note 2.

BA Tokyo & Co

MEMBER OF MAZARS

Certifi ed Public Accountants

Tokyo, Japan
September 24, 2008

STATEMENT ON ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND AUDITING STANDARDS
This statement is to remind users that accounting principles and auditing standards and their application in practice may vary 

among nations and therefore could affect, possibly materially, the reported fi nancial position and results of operations. The 

accompanying fi nancial statements are prepared based on accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, and the auditing 

standards and their application in practice are those generally accepted in Japan. Accordingly, the accompanying fi nancial 

statements and the auditors’ report presented above are for users familiar with Japanese accounting principles, auditing 

standards and their application in practice.

Independent Auditors’ Report
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
Don Quijote Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries

As of June 30, 2008 and 2007

      
  Millions of
 Millions of yen (Note 2) U.S. dollars (Note 2)

ASSETS 20082008 2007 20082008

Current assets:      

Cash and time deposits (Note 15) ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥  38,381¥  38,381 ¥  38,164 $   364$   364
Notes and Accounts receivable-trade  ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  4,3974,397 3,296 4242
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (Note 3)  ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  (82)(82) (17) (1)(1)
Inventories (Notes 3, 4 and 5)  ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  67,41167,411 50,962 640640
Prepaid expenses  ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  2,3682,368 1,450 2222
Deferred tax assets (Notes 3 and 16)  ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  1,5751,575 2,141 1515
Other current assets  ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  2,5302,530 1,155 2525
Total current assets ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  116,580116,580 97,151 1,1071,107

Investments and advances:

Investments in and advances to affi liates (Notes 3 and 7)  ‥‥‥‥‥‥  165165 137 1
Investment securities (Notes 3, 7 and 11) ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥   9,5399,539 9,043 9090
Advance payment for fi xed leasehold deposits ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥   518518 2,556 5
Long-term loans receivable  ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  935935 870 9
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (Note 3)  ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  (2,999)(2,999) (19) (28)(28)
Total investments and advances  ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  8,1588,158 12,587 7777

Property and equipment, at cost (Notes 3, 11 and 15):
Land  ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  48,77948,779 31,710 463463
Buildings and structures ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  72,41972,419 52,143 688688
Vehicles and delivery equipment ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  110110 94 1
Equipment ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  30,82430,824 15,799 293293
Construction in progress ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  318318 1,033 3
Less: Impairment loss‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  (4,586)(4,586) (504) (44)(44)
Less: Accumulated depreciation ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥   (45,313)(45,313) (25,537) (430)(430)
Net property and equipment  ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  102,551102,551 74,738 974974

Intangibles (Note 3)  ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  3,2843,284 2,514 3131

Other assets:

Time deposits (Note 15) ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥   461461 – 4
Fixed leasehold deposits (Note 15)‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥   37,71637,716 18,918 358358
Prepaid expenses ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  2,6442,644 1,602 2525
Deferred tax assets (Notes 3 and 16)  ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  874874 362 8
Other non-current assets  ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  4,0204,020 1,993 3939
Total other assets  ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  45,71545,715 22,875 434434

Total assets ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥276,288¥276,288 ¥209,865 $2,623$2,623

The accompanying notes are integral part of the statements.
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  Millions of
 Millions of yen (Note 2) U.S. dollars (Note 2)

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 20082008 2007 20082008

Current liabilities:     

Accounts payable-trade ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥  39,172¥  39,172 ¥  28,684 $  372$  372
Short-term loans payable (Notes 8 and 15)  ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  1,400 – 13
Current maturities of long-term debt (Notes 8 and 15) ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  15,19715,197 29,396 144144
Accrued income taxes (Note 16)‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  2,6102,610 6,390 2525
Accrued expenses ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  5,5885,588 3,735 5353
Allowance for point program (Note 3) ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  762762 351 7
Other current liabilities ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  8,2468,246 4,577 7979
Total current liabilities ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  72,97572,975 73,133 693693

Long-term liabilities:    

Long-term debt (Notes 8 and 15) ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  97,11197,111 46,633 922922
Allowance for retirement benefi ts for employees (Notes 3 and 12) ‥‥‥  5,6875,687 1,216 5454
Allowance for retirement benefi ts for directors (Note 3) ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  185185 156 2
Negative goodwill (Note 3) ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  4,6574,657 3,634 4444
Other non-current liabilities (Note 15) ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  11,04811,048 2,623 105105
Total long-term liabilities ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  118,688118,688 54,262 1,1271,127

Total liabilities ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  191,663191,663 127,395 1,8201,820

Shareholders’ equity (Notes 3, 13 and 19):     

Common stock 
Authorized:

2007 — 234,000,000 shares
2008 — 234,000,000 shares

Issued and outstanding:
2007 —  71,845,149 shares
2008 —  72,022,209 shares ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  14,97714,977 14,819 142142

Additional paid-in capital ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  16,28916,289 16,130 154154
Retained earnings ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  58,77758,777 50,911 558558
Net unrealized gains (losses) on investment securities ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  (680)(680) 229 (6)(6)
Foreign exchange adjustments  ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  (1,285)(1,285) 305 (12)(12)
Total ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  88,07888,078 82,394 836836

Minority interests ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  1,6881,688 219 1616
Stock subscription rights ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  3 – 0
Less: Treasury stock, at cost 

2007 —      77,079 shares
2008 — 2,936,729 shares ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  (5,144)(5,144) (143) (49)(49)

Total shareholders’ equity ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  84,62584,625 82,470 803803
Total liabilities, minority interests and shareholders’ equity  ‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥276,288¥276,288 ¥209,865 $2,623$2,623

The accompanying notes are integral part of the statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Income 
Don Quijote Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries

For the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007

      
  Millions of
 Millions of yen (Note 2) U.S. dollars (Note 2)

 20082008 2007 20082008
Net sales ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥404,924¥404,924 ¥300,660 $3,844$3,844
Cost of goods sold (Note 4) ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  296,215296,215 227,537 2,8122,812
Gross profi t ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  108,709108,709 73,123 1,0321,032
Selling, general and administrative expenses (Note 17) ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  92,72892,728 59,537 880880
Operating income ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  15,98115,981 13,586 152152

Other income (expenses):
Interest and dividend income  ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  632632 385 6
Interest expenses ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  (877)(877) (466) (8)(8)
Gain on sale of fi xed assets (Note 20) ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  – 2,816 –
Other income, net (Note 14) ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  904904 2,496 8

Income before income taxes and minority interests ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  16,64016,640 18,817 158158

Income taxes (Notes 3 and 16):
Current ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  6,6076,607 8,720 6363
Deferred ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  565565 (572) 5

Income before minority interests ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  9,4689,468 10,669 9090
Minority interests ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  (165)(165) (31) (2)(2)
Net income ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥ 9,303¥ 9,303 ¥ 10,638 $   88$   88

Recurring income:
According to accounting principles and practices generally accepted in Japan, recurring income is shown below:

Operating income ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥15,981¥15,981 ¥13,586 $152$152
Other income (expenses):

Interest and dividend income ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  632632 385 6
Interest expenses ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  (877)(877) (466) (8)(8)
Other income, net ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  1,4681,468 2,269 1313

Recurring income ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  17,20417,204 15,774 163163
Other and extraordinary income (expenses):

Gain on sale of fi xed assets (Note 20) ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  – 2,816 –
Other income and expenses, net‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  (564)(564) 227 (5)(5)

Income before income taxes and minority interests ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥16,640¥16,640 ¥18,817 $158$158

Amount per share of common stock (Notes 3 and 19): Yen U.S. dollars (Note 2)

Basic earnings ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥130.78¥130.78 ¥148.89 $1.24$1.24
Diluted earnings ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  122.00122.00 138.32 1.161.16
Cash dividends applicable to the year  ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  22.0022.00 20.00 0.210.21

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity 
Don Quijote Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries

For the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007

Common stock Additional
paid-in capital

Retained
earnings

Net
unrealized gains 
on investment 

securities

Foreign 
exchange 

adjustments

Minority
interests

Treasury stock, 
at cost

Millions of yen (Note 2)

Balance at June 30, 2006 ‥‥‥ ¥14,360 ¥15,672 ¥42,175 ¥498 ¥13 ¥– ¥166 ¥(143)
Issuance of new shares ‥‥‥ 459 458 – – – – – –
Cash dividends ‥‥‥‥‥‥ – – (1,902) – – – – –
Net income  ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ – – 10,638 – – – – –
Purchase of treasury stock  ‥ – – – – – – – (0)
Other ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ – – – (269) 292 – 53 –

Balance at June 30, 2007 ‥ ¥14,819 ¥16,130 ¥50,911 ¥229 ¥305 ¥– ¥219 ¥(143)¥14,819 ¥16,130 ¥50,911 ¥229 ¥305 ¥– ¥219 ¥(143)
Issuance of new shares ‥‥‥ 158 159 – – – – – –158 159 – – – – – –
Cash dividends ‥‥‥‥‥‥ – – (1,437) – – – – –– – (1,437) – – – – –
Net income ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ – – 9,303 – – – – –– – 9,303 – – – – –
Purchase of treasury stock ‥‥ – – – – – – – (5,001)– – – – – – – (5,001)
Other ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ – – – (909) (1,590) 3 1,469 –– – – (909) (1,590) 3 1,469 –

Balance at June 30, 2008 ‥ ¥14,977 ¥16,289 ¥58,777 ¥(680) ¥(1,285) ¥3 ¥1,688 ¥(5,144)¥14,977 ¥16,289 ¥58,777 ¥(680) ¥(1,285) ¥3 ¥1,688 ¥(5,144)

Common stock Additional
paid-in capital

Retained
earnings

Net
unrealized gains 
on investment 

securities

Foreign 
exchange 

adjustments

Minority
interests

Treasury stock, 
at cost

Millions of U.S. dollars (Note 2)

Balance at June 30, 2007 ‥ $141 $153 $483 $2 $3 $– $2 $(1)$141 $153 $483 $2 $3 $– $2 $(1)
Issuance of new shares ‥‥‥ 1 1 – – – – – – 1 1 – – – – – –
Cash dividends ‥‥‥‥‥‥ – – (13) – – – – –– – (13) – – – – –
Net income ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ – – 88 – – – – –– – 88 – – – – –
Purchase of treasury stock ‥‥ – – – – – – – (48)– – – – – – – (48)
Other ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ – – – (8) (15) 0 14 –– – – (8) (15) 0 14 –

Balance at June 30, 2008 ‥ $142 $154 $558 $(6) $(12) $0 $16 $(49)$142 $154 $558 $(6) $(12) $0 $16 $(49)

The accompanying notes are integral part of the statements.

Stock 
subscription 

rights

Stock 
subscription 

rights
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
Don Quijote Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries

For the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007

      
  Millions of
 Millions of yen (Note 2) U.S. dollars (Note 2)

 20082008 2007 20082008

Cash fl ows from operating activities:
Income before income taxes ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ ¥16,640¥16,640 ¥18,817 $158$158
Depreciation and amortization, including prepaid expenses ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ 7,3987,398 5,395 7070
Impairment loss ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ 932932 – 9
Amortization of negative goodwill ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ (1,119)(1,119) (452) (11)(11)
Increase for doubtful accounts ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ 993993 12 9
Decrease in Allowance for retirement benefi ts for employees ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ (1,078)(1,078) – (10)(10)
Provision (reversal) for retirement benefi ts for directors ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ 1717 (29) 0
Increase (decrease) in allowance for point program ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ (289)(289) 70 (3)(3)
Interest and dividend income‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ (632)(632) (385) (6)(6)
Loss on investment by the equity method ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ 160160 33 2
Gain on SPE ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ (172)(172) (360) (2)(2)
Interest expenses ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ 905905 523 9
Gain from changes in equity ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ (3)(3) (22) (0)(0)
Loss (gain) on sale of investment securities ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ 6 (27) 0
Gain from liquidation of SPE ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ (961)(961) – (9)(9)
Gain on debt extinguishment ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ (500)(500) – (5)(5)
Gain from penalty charges ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ (243)(243) (565) (2)(2)
Loss (gain) on sale of property and equipment ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ 269269 (2,637) 3
Loss on close of stores ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ 433433 77 4
Offset rent expense from deposit received from lessees ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ 1,4701,470 738 1414
Decrease (increase) in trade receivable ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ 263263 (471) 2
Increase in inventories ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ (8,420)(8,420) (2,425) (80)(80)
Increase (decrease) in other current assets ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ (730)(730) 1,248 (7)(7)
Increase in trade payable ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ 1,3681,368 508 1313
Increase in other current liabilities ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ 1,3321,332 417 1313
Increase (decrease) in other non-current liabilities ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ 188188 (124) 2
Other-net ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ 380380 103 4
Cash generated from operations ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ 18,60718,607 20,444 177177
Received interest and dividend income ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ 422422 298 4
Interest paid ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ (801)(801) (514) (8)(8)
Income taxes paid ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ (10,440)(10,440) (4,982) (99)(99)
Received penalty charges ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ – 565 –
Net cash provided by operating activities ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ 7,7887,788 15,811 7474

Cash fl ows from investing activities:
Time deposits transferred from cash ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ (313)(313) – (3)(3)
Proceeds from time deposit ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ 215215 – 2
Payments for purchase of property and equipment ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ (19,305)(19,305) (12,229) (183)(183)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ 1616 6,077 0
Payments for purchase of intangible assets ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ (572)(572) (274) (5)(5)
Payments for leasehold deposits ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ (4,109)(4,109) (4,277) (39)(39)
Proceeds from termination of leasehold deposits ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ 1,5801,580 5,041 1515
Payments for purchase of investments securities ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ (3,144)(3,144) (2,059) (30)(30)
Proceeds from sales of investments securities ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ 200200 300 2
Payments for purchase of subsidiaries’ securities (Note 21) ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ (11,261)(11,261) (13,265) (107)(107)
Payments for purchase of securities of an affi liated company accounted for by the equity method ‥ (120)(120) – (1)
Proceeds on withdrawal of SPE ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ 203203 72 2
Proceeds on liquidation of SPE ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ 1,9121,912 – 1818
Other-net ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ (4,262)(4,262) (4,310) (41)(41)
Net cash used in investing activities ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ (38,960)(38,960) (24,924) (370)(370)

Cash fl ows from fi nancing activities:
Increase (decrease) of short-term bank loans ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ 1,4001,400 (743) 1313
Borrowing of long-term debt  ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ 19,50019,500 5,000 185185
Repayment of long-term debt ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ (8,723)(8,723) (5,756) (83)(83)
Proceeds from issuance of bonds ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ 50,50050,500 26,057 479479
Payments for redemption of bonds ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ (24,838)(24,838) (3,956) (236)(236)
Repayment of lease liabilities ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ (308)(308) (69) (3)(3)
Issuance of common stock ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ 212212 856 2
Payments for purchase of treasury stock ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ (5,001)(5,001) (0) (47)(47)
Proceeds from sales of treasury stock ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ 3 – 0
Payments of cash dividends ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ (1,437)(1,437) (1,902) (13)(13)
Other-net ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ 6060 – 1
Net cash provided by fi nancing activities ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ 31,36831,368 19,487 298298

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents  ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ (235)(235) (2) (2)(2)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ (39)(39) 10,372 (0)(0)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ 38,164 38,164 27,792 362362
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents due to the effect of the excluded results of consolidation ‥ (39)(39) – (0)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (Notes 3 and 21) ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ ¥38,086¥38,086 ¥38,164 $362$362

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the statements.
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Risk information
Listed below are the main risks that could affect the business of Don Quijote Co., Ltd. (the 
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). We make every effort to avoid and miti-
gate these risks after recognizing a possibility of these risks in the future. 

The following risks include the future matters, which are described based on our judg-
ment and consideration from management point of view as of the date of fi ling the fi nan-
cial reports to MOF, September 26, 2008.

1. Store expansion and human resources
To keep its planned store expansion, the Group must ensure the continuing adequacy 
of its existing systems, controls and procedures, including distribution facilities, store 
management, fi nancial controls and information systems. Especially the adequate labor 
resources are essential. There is no assurance that the Group will be able to achieve its 
planned expansion, that new stores will be effectively integrated into the Group’s existing 
operations or that such stores will be profi table.

2. Import and distribution
The Group is importing an increasing portion of its merchandise from sources outside Ja-
pan. As an importer, the Group’s business is subject to the risks generally associated with 
doing business abroad, such as foreign governmental regulations, economic disruptions, 
delays in shipments, increases of freight cost and changes in political or economic condi-
tions in countries in which the Group purchases products. 

Two distribution centers in Saitama and Osaka are operated by a third party contrac-
tor on behalf of the Group. Any signifi cant interruption in the operation of these facilities, 
failure by the contractor to properly and successfully coordinate the operations of these 
facilities or any fi nancial diffi culties on the contractor would have a material adverse effect 
on the Group’s business, fi nancial condition and results of operations.

3. Merchandising 
The Group’s success depends in part upon the ability of its marketing staff, particularly 
those in their twenties and thirties, who anticipate customer trends and provide merchan-
dise that appeals to customers. The failure to maintain and improve the quality of those 
staff members and to keep managing the Group’s organizational systems could lead to the 
decline of the Group’s business results.

4. Consumer demand, weather and seasonality
Sales at the Group’s stores are subject to consumer demand, weather and seasonal varia-
tions. The peak sales periods for the Group are the months of August and December. 
Consequently, if the Group fails to realize suffi cient sales during its peak points, this could 
have a material adverse effect on the Group’s business, fi nancial condition and results of 
operation.

5. Regulatory environment
The Group is subject to Japanese laws and regulations. The Large Scale Retail Store 
Location Law became effective from June 2000. The purpose of the law is to give local 
governments the power to regulate the development of large stores with a sales fl oor 
space of more than 1,000 square meters and to maintain lively environment in the areas 
surrounding such stores.  

The Group has to take measures to build soundproofi ng fences around store parking 
lots so as to resolve problems regarding car-parking noise. Thus, it is expected that the 
cost of building the fences will, somewhat, affect the Group’s fi nancial performance. If the 
local communities have special regulations for stores with a sales fl oor space of less than 
1,000 square meters, in particular, the Group’s fi nancial performance and expansion plans 
may be also adversely affected if stores are forced to reduce their operations.

6. Future capital requirements
The Group has to secure enough fi nance through the use of the various fi nancial instru-
ments including bonds for its further expansion. To the extent that such funding is not 
available to the Group in the future or is only available at very high cost, the Group’s busi-
ness, fi nancial condition and results of operations are likely to be adversely affected.

7. Outsourcing of bookkeeping of accounts payable
The Company entrusts daily procedures in relation to the Company’s accounting payables 
to a third party contractor. Any signifi cant interruption in the procedures, failure by the 
contractor to properly coordinate the procedures successfully or any fi nancial diffi culties 
on the contractor would have a material adverse effect on the Company’s accounting and 
payment process.

8. Security of customers’ data
The Group handles customers’ data with precise care. Any data leak would have a material 
adverse effect on the Group’s reputation, fi nancial condition and results of operations that 
could lead to legal matters.

9. Impairment of fi xed assets
The Group has promptly adopted the accounting standard for impairment of fi xed assets 
(“Opinion Concerning Establishment of Accounting Standard for Impairment of Fixed As-
sets” issued by the Business Accounting Deliberation Council on August 9, 2002) and the 
implementation guidance for the accounting standard for impairment of fi xed assets (the 
Financial Accounting Standards Implementation Guidance No.6 issued by the Accounting 
Standards Board of Japan (ASBJ) on October 31, 2003) since the year ended June 30, 
2004. 

The Group tested fi xed assets for impairment by comparing the fair value of each unit, 
using discounted cash fl ows to the caring value to determine if there is an indication that 
potential impairment may exist. Potential impairment would have material adverse effect 
on the Group’s business, fi nancial condition and results of operations.

10. Price drop of subsidiary and affi liated company shares
Shares of subsidiaries and affi liates are valued at cost. To the extent that the operation of 
subsidiaries and affi liates become loss continually, by applying the Financial Accounting 
Standards Impairment Guidance No.6, the potential impairment would have material ad-
verse effect on the Group’s business, fi nancial condition and results of operations.

11.  Accounting policy change for investments through silent partnership 
(Tokumei Kumiai)

The Company operates the fl uidity of the store real estate through silent partnership 
(Tokumei Kumiai), in recognition that accounting practices on consolidation scope is still 
yet to be decided.

Effective from the fi scal year ended June 30, 2008, the Company and its consolidated 
subsidiaries adopted “Accounting standard for practical Solution on Application of the 
Control Criteria and Infl uence Criteria to Investment Associations ” (Statement No.20 is-
sued by The Accounting Standards Board of Japan (ASBJ) September 8, 2006). 

Currently, the Company considers silent partnership (Tokumei Kumiai) agreement of 
each SPE, assessing existence of control, or infl uence on the decision of a subsidiary or 
an affi liate and its consolidation scope.

In case accounting practice which vary widely from the policy that the Company adopt-
ed would be established under new accounting standards or practical guidelines, changes 
on consolidation scope policy adversely effect its operating results and fi nancial positions.

12. Expansion by mergers and acquisitions
The Company has implemented mergers and acquisitions as a means of its business 
expansion. The Company avoids risks by precise due diligence about the target company, 
its business and contractual relevant matters. There is, however, possibility of liabilities 
incurrence and revelation after mergers and acquisitions are completed. In addition, there 
is a possibility that expected synergy effect could not be seen by various factors.

For this case, it would have adverse effect on the Group’s business, fi nancial condition 
and results of operations.

13. Stock option
The Company adopts an incentive system that gives stock option to competent directors 
and employees in the Group. For when the currently given stock option as well as pro-
spectively given stock option are exercised, the Company shares would be diluted. Stock 
option given after May 1, 2006 essentially needs to be allocated as expense, and so it 
would possibly have material adverse effect on the Group’s business, fi nancial condition 
and results of operations.

14. Loss on close of stores
The Group is proactively opening positive new stores, and withdrawing unprofitable 
stores. In case stores cannot achieve scheduled profi t, it is a policy to be closed unless 
successful performance in reduction of selling, general and administrative expenses or 
expansion in sales by the management effort to be seen. Loss on close of stores might be 
an adverse effect on business performance.

15. Foreign currency risks
The Company imports commodities directly and indirectly from overseas.

Generally, higher-yen introduces lower purchase price, and lower-yen introduces 
higher purchase price. Therefore, ratio of gross profi t to sales is still open to currency 
risks despite forward exchange contract in purpose of avoiding Company’s exposure to 
fl uctuations in foreign currency rates.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007
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1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS
The Don Quijote Group (the “Group”) is composed of Don Quijote Co., Ltd. (the “Company”), 
sixteen consolidated subsidiaries (Paw Creation Co., Ltd., Donki Johokan Co., Ltd., D-ONE 
Co., LTD., REALIT Co., Ltd. , Don Quijote (USA) Co., Ltd., Doit Co., Ltd.,  Nagasakiya Co., 
LTD., and its nine subsidiaries), seven subsidiaries are excluded from consolidation and 
two affi liated companies accounted for by the equity method and two affi liated companies 
not accounted for by the equity method. 

Major operations of the Group are as follows:

(Discount store operations)
The Company, Don Quijote (USA) Co., Ltd. and Doit Co., Ltd. operate retail chain busi-
ness by selling electrical appliances, daily commodities, foods, watches, fashion goods, 
sports and leisure goods, and DIY products with the concept of “big convenience and 
discount stores”.

(Superstore operations)
Nagasakiya Co., LTD. operates superstore business by selling clothes, foods and hous-
ing related commodities.

(Rental business operations)
Paw Creation Co., Ltd. rents part of fl oor space in PAW shopping malls to tenants.
The Company, Don Quijote(USA) Co., Ltd., Doit Co., Ltd. and Nagasakiya Co., LTD. op-
erate space-leasing business by leasing part of their stores to tenants.

(Other operations)
Donki Johokan Co., Ltd. operates as an agent who sells cellular phones and call plans.
D-ONE Co., Ltd. operates store development and real estate business for the Group stores.
REALIT Co., Ltd. operates system development and provides integrative internet services.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTING CONSOLIDATIED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated fi nancial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting prin-
ciples and practices generally accepted in Japan under the requirements of the Japanese 
Corporate Law and other applicable rules and regulations for domestic purpose and are 
filed with the local finance bureau of the Ministry of Finance (MOF) as required by the 
Financial Instruments and Exchange Law (formerly, the Japanese Securities and Exchange 
Law) and its related laws, rules and regulations. In preparing these fi nancial statements, 
certain reclassifi cations and rearrangements have been made to the original fi nancial state-
ments issued domestically in Japan, for the conveniences of readers outside Japan. The 
consolidated fi nancial statements are not intended to present the fi nancial positions, results 
of operations and cash fl ows in accordance with accounting principles and practices gener-
ally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than Japan.

The Don Quijote (USA) Co., Ltd. is prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
and generally accepted in U.S.A. 

In addition, the accompanying notes include information, which is not required under 
generally accepted accounting principles and practices in Japan, but is presented herein as 
additional information.

All yen fi gures are rounded off to the nearest million yen. The U.S. dollar amounts pre-
sented in the accompanying fi nancial statements are converted solely for convenience at 
the rate of ¥105.33 to U.S. $1.00, which was the approximate exchange rate prevailing on 
June 30, 2008. The convenient translations should not be construed as representations that 
the Japanese yen amounts have been, could have been, or could in the future be, converted 
into U.S. dollars at this or any other rate of exchange.

Certain reclassifi cations have been made in the 2007 fi nancial statements to conform to 
the presentation for 2008.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Consolidation
In the accompanying consolidated financial statements, the Company accounts for its 
subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. As of June 30, 2008, the Company has twenty-three 
subsidiaries including sixteen consolidated subsidiaries as set out in the following table.

 Group interest
 of capital Activity
PAW Creation Co., Ltd.  100.0%  Operation of multiple tenant shopping malls 

including leasing of real property
Donki Johokan Co., Ltd. 51.0%  Operation of cellular phones sales business 

as an agency of Don Quijote
D-ONE Co., Ltd. 100.0%  Operation of development of the group 

companies, and real estate business
REALIT Co., Ltd. 5.1%  Operation of system development and 

integrative internet services
Don Quijote (USA) Co., Ltd. 100.0% Operation of discount retail stores
Doit Co., Ltd. 100.0% Operation of discount retail stores
Nagasakiya Co., LTD. *1 93.9% Operation of retail superstore

*1 Nagasakiya Co., LTD. has been consolidated since October 26, 2007.
*2   DIY Promotion Co., Ltd. has been excluded from the Company’s consolidation scope, 

since it has become a dormant company during the fi scal year ended June 30, 2008.

Under the control or infl uence concept, those companies in which the Company, directly or 
indirectly, is able to exercise control over operations are fully consolidated, and those com-
panies over which the Group has the ability to exercise signifi cant infl uence are accounted 
for by the equity method.

Investments in affi liates are accounted for by the equity method. All material intercom-
pany transactions and account balances have been eliminated.

Equity method companies
(1) Affi liates accounted for by the equity method: two companies 

THE GALAXY RAILWAYS II Production Partnership
World Victory Road Inc.

(2) Non-consolidated subsidiaries and affi liates not accounted for by the equity method
Seven non-consolidated subsidiaries and two affi liates that are not accounted for by the 
equity method are excluded from the application of the equity method as they do not 
have a signifi cant impact on the fi nancial condition and the operation.

Cash and cash equivalents
In preparing the cash fl ow statements for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, cash is 
considered to be “cash and cash equivalents”, which include cash on hand, readily available 
deposits and highly liquid investments with original maturities not exceeding three months.

Exchange of foreign currency accounts
All assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign 
exchange rates prevailing at the respective balance sheet dates. Foreign exchange gains or 
losses are credited or charged to current income when incurred.

All assets and liabilities of foreign consolidated subsidiaries are translated at the foreign 
exchange rates prevailing at the respective balance sheet date except for shareholders’ 
equity, which is translated at the historical rate. Differences arising from such translation 
were shown as “Foreign exchange adjustments” in a separate component of “Shareholders’ 
equity”. Revenue and expense accounts of consolidated foreign subsidiaries are translated 
into yen at the average exchange rate.

Use of estimates
The preparation of fi nancial statements requires management to make estimates and as-
sumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the fi nancial statements and revenues and 
expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Marketable securities and Investment securities
Securities available-for-sale are carried at fair value with corresponding unrealized gains 
(losses) recorded directly in a separate component of shareholders’ equity. Realized gains 
and losses, which are determined by the moving-average cost method, are refl ected in the 
statements of income when realized. Securities available-for-sale for which fair value is not 
readily determinable are carried at moving average cost or amortized cost determined by 
the moving average method.

Investment in affi liates, in which the Group has a 20%-50% interest or otherwise ex-
ercises signifi cant infl uence are carried at cost, adjusted for the Companys’ proportionate 
share of their undistributed earnings or losses.

Inventories
The Company, Doit Co., Ltd., Nagasakiya Co., LTD. and foreign subsidiaries adopt the prin-
ciple that inventories are valued at cost determined by the retail method.

Fresh food is valued at last purchased price method. 
Effective from the fi scal year ended June 30, 2008, the Company and its consolidated 

subsidiaries adopted “Accounting Standard for measurement of Inventories” (Statement 
No.9 issued by the Accounting Standards Board of Japan on July 5, 2006). Accordingly, 
inventories are stated at the lower of their historical cost or net realizable value, and the 
Company and its consolidated subsidiaries posted ¥1,539 million ($15 million) losses.

Property and equipment
Property and equipment are carried at cost. Signifi cant renewals and additions are capital-
ized: maintenance repairs, minor renewals and improvements, are charged to income as 
incurred, interest costs relating to construction of property and equipment are not capital-
ized.

For the Company and domestic subsidiaries, depreciation of property and equipment 
is computed principally by the declining balance method except the buildings, which is 
depreciated on the straight-line method. These are according to the rules based on the 
Japanese Corporation Tax Law. Property and equipment by lease contracts is computed by 
the straight-line method.

For the foreign subsidiaries, the depreciation of property and equipment is computed by 
the straight-line method. 

The useful lives of property and equipment for computing depreciation, which are iden-
tical with the useful lives stipulated under the Japanese Corporate Tax regulations, are as 
shown below:

 Years
Buildings and structures ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  3 to 45
Equipment and vehicles ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  2 to 20
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In general, when assets are sold or otherwise disposed of, the profi ts or losses thereon, 
computed on the basis of the difference between depreciated costs and proceeds, are 
credited or charged to income in the year of sale or disposal, and costs and accumulated 
depreciation are removed from the accounts.

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment and written down to fair value whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not 
be recoverable and an impairment loss must be recognized. If the sum of the expected 
future cash fl ows is less than the carrying amount of the assets, an impairment loss is rec-
ognized.

Intangible assets
In accordance with the provisional rule of the JICPA’s Accounting Committee Report No.12 
“Practical Guidance for Accounting for Research and Development Costs, etc.” (the “Re-
port”), the Group (except Don Quijote (USA) Co., Ltd.) accounts for software which was 
included in intangible assets in the same manner in 2008 as in 2007 and depreciated it us-
ing the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives (fi ve years).

Identifiable intangibles are reviewed for impairment and written down to fair value 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset 
may not be recoverable and an impairment loss must be recognized. If the sum of the ex-
pected future cash fl ows is less than the carrying amount of the assets, an impairment loss 
is recognized.

Negative goodwill
Negative goodwill is amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated useful 
lives.

Lease transactions 
Non-cancelable lease transactions that transfer substantially all risks and rewards associ-
ated with the ownership of assets are accounted for as fi nance leases. All other lease trans-
actions are accounted for as operating leases and relating payments are charged to income.

Common stock issuance costs
Common stock issuance costs are directly charged to income as incurred. The Japanese 
Corporate Law prohibits charging such stock issuance costs to capital accounts.

Bond issuance costs
Bond issuance costs are directly charged to income as incurred.

Allowance for doubtful accounts
The allowance for doubtful receivables is provided in amounts suffi cient to cover possible 
losses on collection. The allowances for doubtful accounts has been provided for at the 
aggregate amount of estimated credit loss based on the individual fi nancial approach for 
doubtful or troubled receivables and a general reserve for other receivables calculated 
based on the historical loss experience for a certain time period.

Allowance for point program 
The allowance for the point program is stated in amounts considered to be appropriate 
based on the Company’s past redemption experience.

Allowance for retirement benefi ts for employees
Doit Co., Ltd., Nagasakiya Co., LTD. and its consolidated subsidiaries adopted a retirement 
benefi t plan for employees. The subsidiaries accounted for the allowance based on pro-
jected benefi t obligations at the balance sheet date.

Allowance for retirement benefi ts for directors
The Company and Nagasakiya Co., LTD. adopted a retirement benefi t plan for directors 
and statutory auditors. Directors and statutory auditors are entitled to be paid a lump-sum 
retirement benefi t determined on the basis of the Company rules. 

Revenues recognition
The Company, Nagasakiya Co., LTD., Doit Co., Ltd., and foreign subsidiaries recognize 
revenue as “Net sales” at the time sales are made to customers. Paw Creation Co., Ltd. 
recognizes revenue as rental fees from tenant, as it becomes receivable according to the 
provision of lease agreement. These fees are determined on the basis of the sale of each 
tenant.

Income taxes
Income taxes are determined by using the asset liability method, where deferred tax assets 
and liabilities are recognized for temporary differences between tax basis of assets and li-
abilities and their reported amounts in the fi nancial statements.

Presentation of equity
On December 9, 2005, the ASBJ published a new accounting standard for presentation of 
equity.

Under this accounting standard, certain items previously presented as liabilities are now 
presented as components of equity. Such items include stock acquisition rights, minority 
interests, and any deferred gain or loss on derivatives under hedge accounting.

This standard is effective for fi scal years ended on or after May 1, 2006.

Derivatives fi nancial instruments
The Group uses derivative fi nance instruments for the purpose of hedging against the risk 
of fl uctuation in foreign currency rates and interests on loan payable. The carrying amounts 
of interest swap contracts and forward exchange contracts are stated at market value at 
balance sheet date.

Dividends
Dividends are declared by the Board of Directors and approved by the shareholders at 
meetings held subsequent to the fiscal year to which the dividends are applicable, and 
shareholders of record as at the end of such fi scal year are entitled to the subsequently 
declared dividends. Dividends charged to retained earnings represent dividends approved 
by the shareholders and paid during the respective years. Semi-annual interim dividends 
may also be paid upon resolution of the Board of Directors, subject to certain limitations 
imposed by the Japanese Corporate Law.

Bonuses to directors and statutory auditors
Bonuses to directors and statutory auditors, which are subject to shareholders’ approval 
at the annual shareholders’ meeting under the Japanese Corporate Law, are charged to 
income as incurred.

The Company applies its method of accounting for bonuses to directors and statutory 
auditors to charge them to income as incurred (Practical Issues Task Force No.13, “Ac-
counting Treatment for Bonuses to Directors and Corporate Auditors,” issued by the Ac-
counting Standards Board of Japan on March 9, 2004).  

Accounting for consumption taxes
The Japanese consumption taxes withheld and consumption tax paid are not included in the 
accompanying consolidated statements of income. Accrued consumption tax is included in 
other current liabilities.

Shareholders’ equity
Changes in the number of shares issued and outstanding during the years ended June 30, 
2008 and 2007 are as follows:

Common stock outstanding:  20082008 2007
Balance at beginning of the year ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  71,845,14971,845,149 23,779,408
Increase by stock split ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  – 47,558,816
Conversion of convertible bonds ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  57,66057,660 74,625
Exercise of stock options ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  119,400119,400 432,300
Balance at end of the year ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  72,022,20972,022,209 71,845,149

Changes in the number of treasury stocks during the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 
are as follows:

Treasury stock outstanding:  20082008 2007
Balance at beginning of the year ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  77,07977,079 25,650
Increase by stock split ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  – 51,300
Increase based on the Articles of Incorporation in accordance

with Article 165-2 of the Japanese Corporate Law  ‥‥  2,859,4002,859,400 –
Increase by the purchase of treasury stock ‥‥‥‥  250250 129
Balance at end of the year ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  2,936,7292,936,729 77,079

Per share data
Basic net income per common share is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted-
average number of shares outstanding during the reported period excepted for Note of 
Statements of Income. The calculation of diluted net income per common share is similar 
to the calculation of basic net income per share, except that the weighted-average number 
of shares outstanding includes the additional dilution from potential common stock equiva-
lents such as convertible bonds and dilutive equity securities.

4. ACCOUNTING CHANGE 
Effective from the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the Company and its consolidated 
subsidiaries adopted “Accounting Standard for measurement of Inventories” (Statement 
No.9 issued by the Accounting Standards Board of Japan on July 5, 2006). Accordingly, in-
ventories are stated at the lower of their historical cost or net realizable value. The effect of 
the change was to decrease operating income, recurring income and net income by ¥1,539 
million ($15 million).

5. INVENTORIES
Inventories at June 30, 2008, and 2007 are as follows:

  Millions of
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars
 (Note 2) (Note 2)
 20082008 2007 20082008
Electrical appliances ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥13,040¥13,040 ¥10,349 $124$124
Daily commodities ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  10,48710,487 6,942 100100
Foods ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  3,8293,829 2,387 3636
Watches, fashion goods ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  30,25630,256 22,262 287287
Sports, leisure goods ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  3,5993,599 2,538 3434
DIY products ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  4,1874,187 4,373 4040
Others ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  2,0132,013 2,111 1919
Total ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥67,411¥67,411 ¥50,962 $640$640
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6. LEASE TRANSACTIONS

(1) Lease transactions derived from Special Purpose Entity (SPE)
(a) Assumed acquisition cost:

  Millions of
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars
 (Note 2) (Note 2)
 20082008 2007 20082008
Land ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥7,236¥7,236 ¥8,707 $69$69
Buildings ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  4,9134,913 6,574 4747
Structures ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  7070 132 1

(b) Lease payments:

  Millions of
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars
 (Note 2) (Note 2)
 20082008 2007 20082008
Lease payments ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥1,825¥1,825 ¥2,233 $17$17

(c) Maximum guarantees for SPE: ¥1,724 million ($16 million)

(2) Operating lease
(a)  Future minimum lease payments subsequent to for operating leases by SPE were 

summarized as follows:

  Millions of
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars
 (Note 2) (Note 2)
 20082008 2007 20082008
Due within one year ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥1,742¥1,742 ¥  2,075 $16$16
Due after one year ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  5,9895,989 9,148 5757
Total ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥7,731¥7,731 ¥11,223 $73$73

(b)  Future minimum lease payments subsequent to for operating leases of superstore 
operations were summarized as follows:

  Millions of
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars
 (Note 2) (Note 2)
 20082008 2007 20082008
Due within one year ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥3,514¥3,514 – $33$33
Due after one year ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  21,21921,219 – 202202
Total ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥24,733¥24,733 – $235$235

7. MARKETABLE SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT SECURITIES
The Group invests in equity securities and classifi es its investments in equity securities as 
available-for-sale.

Investments securities consist of equity securities, debt securities and others.

(1)  Information regarding available-for-sale securities and investment 
securities as of June 30, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

The following table sets forth acquisition cost, fair market value and unrealized gains (losses) 
as of June 30, 2008.

 Millions of yen (Note 2)
 20082008
   Net unrealized
 Acquisition cost Fair market value gains (losses)
Fair market value exceeds acquisition cost:    
Equity securities ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥752 ¥916 ¥164¥752 ¥916 ¥164
Debt securities:

Corporate bonds ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  300 301 1300 301 1
Others ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  548 573 25548 573 25
Subtotal ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  1,600 1,790 1901,600 1,790 190
Fair market value does not exceed acquisition cost:    
Equity securities ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  2,346 2,019 (327)2,346 2,019 (327)
Debt securities:

Corporate bonds ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  1,796 1,664 (132)1,796 1,664 (132)
Others ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  2,407 1,628 (779) 2,407 1,628 (779)
Subtotal ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  6,549 5,311 (1,238)6,549 5,311 (1,238)
Total ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥8,149 ¥7,101 ¥(1,048)¥8,149 ¥7,101 ¥(1,048)

The following table sets forth acquisition cost, fair market value and unrealized gains (losses) 
in U.S. dollars as of June 30, 2008.

 Millions of U.S. dollars (Note 2)
 20082008
   Net unrealized
 Acquisition cost Fair market value gains (losses)
Fair market value exceeds acquisition cost:    
Equity securities ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  $7 $9 $2$7 $9 $2
Debt securities:

Corporate bonds ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  3 3 03 3 0
Others ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  5 5 05 5 0
Subtotal ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  15 17 215 17 2
Fair market value does not exceed acquisition cost:    
Equity securities ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  22 19 (3)22 19 (3)
Debt securities:

Corporate bonds ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  17 16 (1)17 16 (1)
Others ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  23 15 (8)23 15 (8)
Subtotal ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  62 50 (12) 62 50 (12)
Total ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  $77 $67 $(10) $77 $67 $(10)

The following table sets forth acquisition cost, fair market value and unrealized gains (losses) 
as of June 30, 2007.

 Millions of yen (Note 2)
 2007
   Net unrealized
 Acquisition cost Fair market value gains (losses)
Fair market value exceeds acquisition cost:    
Equity securities ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥  364 ¥777 ¥413
Debt securities ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  – – –
Others ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  1,514 1,768 254
Subtotal ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  1,878 2,545 667
Fair market value does not exceed acquisition cost:    
Equity securities ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  104 96 (8)
Debt securities:

Corporate bonds ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  1,607 1,522 (85)
Others ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  1,562 1,373 (189)
Subtotal ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  3,273 2,991 (282)
Total ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥5,151 ¥5,536 ¥385

(2) Unlisted equity securities as of June 30, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

  Millions of
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars
 (Note 2) (Note 2)
 20082008 2007 20082008
Subsidiaries and affi liates ‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥165¥165 ¥137 $1$1
Unlisted equity securities ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  1,1761,176 1,261 1111
Investment in Special Purpose Entity ‥‥  1,2611,261 2,246 1212

The Group’s investment of the “GALAXY RAILWAYS STORY II Production Partnership” fund 
was carried at equity. This fund was the only application of the equity method and included 
in investments securities.

(3) Redemption timing for held-to-maturity securities:

 Millions of yen (Note 2)
 20082008
  Due after one year Due after fi ve years 
 Due in one year and within fi ve years and within ten years Due after ten years
Debt securities 

Corporate bonds ‥  ¥ – ¥1,164 ¥ – ¥800¥ – ¥1,164 ¥ – ¥800
Subtotal ‥‥‥‥‥  ¥ – ¥1,164 ¥ – ¥800¥ – ¥1,164 ¥ – ¥800

 Millions of U.S. dollars (Note 2)
 20082008
  Due after one year Due after fi ve years 
 Due in one year and within fi ve years and within ten years Due after ten years
Debt securities 

Corporate bonds ‥  $ – $11 $ – $8$ – $11 $ – $8
Subtotal ‥‥‥‥‥  $ – $11 $ – $8 $ – $11 $ – $8
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 Millions of yen (Note 2)
 2007
  Due after one year Due after fi ve years 
 Due in one year and within fi ve years and within ten years Due after ten years
Debt securities 

Corporate bonds ‥  ¥ – ¥984 ¥ – ¥538
Subtotal ‥‥‥‥‥  ¥ – ¥984 ¥ – ¥538

8. SHORT-TERM LOAN AND LONG-TERM DEBT
Short-term loans are principally comprised of bank loans (average interest rate is 1.2% as 
of June 30, 2008).

As is customary in Japan, substantially all loans from banks (including short-term 
loans) are made under general agreements which provide that, at the request of the banks, 
the borrower is required to provide collateral or guarantors (or additional collateral or guar-
antors, as appropriate) with respect to such loans, and that all assets pledged as collateral 
under such agreements will be applicable to all present and future indebtedness to the 
banks concerned. 

Long-term debt as of June 30, 2008, consisted of the following:

  Millions of
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars
 (Note 2) (Note 2)
Borrowings from banks and insurance companies at 

interest ranging from 1.5% to 1.6% ‥‥‥‥‥‥ ¥23,437 $223¥23,437 $223
0.00 % unsecured convertible bonds due 2011 

(convertible at ¥1,821 ($17) for one common share, 
redeemable before due date)* ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ 8,985 858,985 85

0.00 % unsecured convertible bonds due 2013 
(convertible at ¥3,571 ($34) for one common share, 
redeemable before due date)* ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ 23,041 21923,041 219

0.63 % unsecured straight bonds due 2010  ‥‥‥‥ 800 8800 8
0.92 % unsecured straight bonds due 2010 ‥‥‥‥ 400 4400 4
0.69 % unsecured straight bonds due 2010 ‥‥‥‥ 400 4400 4
0.76 % unsecured straight bonds due 2010 ‥‥‥‥ 400 4400 4
0.75 % unsecured straight bonds due 2010 ‥‥‥‥ 400 4400 4
1.26 % unsecured straight bonds due 2010 ‥‥‥‥ 840 8840 8
0.97 % unsecured straight bonds due 2011 ‥‥‥‥ 600 6600 6
1.28 % unsecured straight bonds due 2011 ‥‥‥‥ 900 9900 9
1.67 % unsecured straight bonds due 2011 ‥‥‥‥ 30,000 28530,000 285
1.04 % unsecured straight bonds due 2011 ‥‥‥‥ 1,000 91,000 9
1.36 % unsecured straight bonds due 2012 ‥‥‥‥ 1,200 111,200 11
1.33 % unsecured straight bonds due 2012 ‥‥‥‥ 1,200 111,200 11
1.21 % unsecured straight bonds due 2012 ‥‥‥‥ 1,800 171,800 17
1.30 % unsecured straight bonds due 2012 ‥‥‥‥ 1,500 141,500 14
1.07 % unsecured straight bonds due 2012 ‥‥‥‥ 2,250 212,250 21
1.17 % unsecured straight bonds due 2012 ‥‥‥‥ 900 9900 9
1.20 % unsecured straight bonds due 2013 ‥‥‥‥ 3,500 333,500 33
0.99 % unsecured straight bonds due 2013 ‥‥‥‥ 3,000 283,000 28
1.08 % unsecured straight bonds due 2013 ‥‥‥‥ 3,000 283,000 28
1.30 % unsecured straight bonds due 2013 ‥‥‥‥ 2,000 192,000 19
Subtotal ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ 111,553 1,059111,553 1,059
Capital fi nance lease liabilities ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ 755 7755 7
Less: Current portion of long-term debt ‥‥‥‥‥‥ 15,197 14415,197 144
Total ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥ ¥97,111 $922¥97,111 $922

* A summary of the stock acquisition rights (SARs) as of June 30, 2008 is as follows:

 Exercise price Total number of  Outstanding Number of shares
Issued on Exercisable during Yen Dollars SARs to be issued balance of outstanding balance
 February 9, 2004January to ¥1,821 $17 3,400 1,797 4,934,10226, 2004 January 11, 2011

 Exercise price Total number of  Outstanding Number of shares
Issued on Exercisable during Yen Dollars SARs to be issued balance of outstanding balance
 August 7, 2006July to ¥3,571 $34 2,300 2,300 6,456,87424, 2006 July 10, 2013

Convertible bonds are treated solely as bonds and no value inherent in their conversion 
feature is recognized in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan. 
The total amount of the convertible bonds has been included in long-term debt.

Long-term loans are principally comprised of bank loans (average interest rate is 1.6% 
as of June 30, 2008).

The aggregate annual maturities of the long-term debts subsequent to June 30, 2008 are as 
follows:

  Millions of
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Fiscal year ending June 30, (Note 2) (Note 2)
2008‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥14,792 $140
2009‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  13,780 131
2010‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  48,802 463
2011‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  6,900 66
2012 and thereafter ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  27,279 259
Total ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥111,553 $1,059

9. UNUSED FINANCING COMMITMENTS
The Company has 10,000 million yen of unused line of credit with 12 banks to be draw 
upon as needed to fi nance.

  Millions of
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars
 (Note 2) (Note 2)
 20082008 2007 20082008
Gross amount of committed 

line of loan payable ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥10,000¥10,000 ¥10,000 $95$95
Bank loan committed ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  – – –
Unused fi nancing commitments 

at June 30, 2008 ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥10,000 ¥10,000 ¥10,000 $95$95

10. DERIVATIVES

1. Outline of derivative transactions
(1) Nature of derivative transactions
The Company utilizes interest rate swap contracts and forward exchange contracts for the 
derivative fi nancial instrument.

(2) Policy for derivative transactions 
Derivative transactions are for evading exposure to fl uctuations in foreign currencies and 
interest rates. The Company does not utilize derivatives for trading purposes.

(3) Purpose of derivative transactions
The Company utilizes derivative transactions as follows:
Interest derivatives: avoiding interest –rate runup of loans interest payable.
Currency derivatives: avoiding future currency fl uctuations on foreign-currency-denominated 
debts and credits of normal business transactions.

(4) Risks of derivative transactions
The Company is exposed to risks related to interest and currency rate fl uctuations, but any 
such risk would not be expected to be material because the Company enters into derivative 
transactions only with fi nancial institutions with high credit ratings.

(5) Transaction control
Derivative transactions are appropriately pre-approved by the fi nancial decision maker of 
the accounting department. The Company approves derivative transactions as appropriate, 
and in accordance with policies, which regulate the authorization and credit limit amount.

(6) Additional explanation regarding transaction value
The notional amounts of the derivative fi nancial instruments do not necessarily represent 
the amounts exchanged by the parties and, therefore, are not a direct measure of the Com-
pany’s risk exposure in connection with derivatives.

2.  The Company had the following derivatives contracts outstanding 
at June 30. 

For fi scal 2008
 Millions of yen (Note 2)
 Contract Amount Fair Value Unrealized Gain
Interest rate swap contracts ‥‥‥  ¥10,185 ¥(23) ¥(23)¥10,185 ¥(23) ¥(23)
Forward exchange contracts‥‥‥  ¥717 ¥739 ¥22¥717 ¥739 ¥22

 Millions of U.S. dollars (Note 2)
 Contract Amount Fair Value Unrealized Gain
Interest rate swap contracts ‥‥‥  $97 $(0) $(0) $97 $(0) $(0)
Forward exchange contracts‥‥‥  $7 $7 $0 $7 $7 $0

For Fiscal 2007
 Millions of yen (Note 2)
 Contract Amount Fair Value Unrealized Gain
Interest rate swap contracts ‥‥‥  ¥4,711 ¥4 ¥4
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11. USE OF A SPECIAL PURPOSE ENTITY (THE “SPE”)
      FOR PROPERTY OWNERSHIP
1. Summary and transactions of SPEs

The company has used a sales and lease back structure to securitize real estate assets 
pursuant to which the SPE acquires real estate from the Company and leases it back to 
the Company. The scheme was used to refi nance the Shinjuku Higashi-guchi store. This 
particular SPE structure is required to be reviewed after fi ve years and, if it is determined 
at that time not to continue with the structure, the real estate will either be repurchased by 
the Company or sold by the SPE to a third party. In the latter case, where the market value 
of the real estate has fallen to less than 75 % of the initial purchase price, the Company is 
required to pay the shortfall up to 75 % of the initial purchase price.

In order to obtain financing, in August 2005, the Company used the SPE structure in 
respect of real estate for PAW Nishinomiya, PAW Ishikiri, PAW Kashiwa, and Atsugi. The 
Company entrusted the real estate to a trustee and sold benefi cial rights/interests to improve 
the fi nancial structure of the Company by reducing interest-bearing debt. 

The amount of SPE was stated at ¥1,261 million ($12 million), which is the historical 
cost as of June 30, 2008. Under these arrangements, the funds (investments) are subor-
dinated to all liabilities to other members of silent partnerships and third parties other than 
members of the silent partnerships. Gain from fund was charged to other income. Total as-
sets of SPEs were ¥14,074 million and total liabilities of them were ¥11,242 as of the nearest 
end of reporting period.

2. Transactions between SPEs as of consolidated fi scal year ended June 30, 2008

 Millions of yen (Note 2)
 Major transaction Profi t and loss
 amount or balance Account Amount
Investments on silent ¥– Gain on SPE ¥172
partnership (Tokumei Kumiai)  Gain from liquidation of SPE 961
Lease back transaction – Lease payment 1,825
Guaranteed amount 1,724 – –

 Millions of U.S. dollars (Note 2)
 Major transaction Profi t and loss
 amount or balance Account Amount
Investments on silent $– Gain on SPE $2
partnership (Tokumei Kumiai)  Gain from liquidation of SPE 9
Lease back transaction – Lease payment 17
Guaranteed amount 16 – –

12. ALLOWANCE FOR RETIREMENT BENEFITS FOR EMPLOYEES
The liabilities for retirement benefi ts included in the liability section of the consolidated bal-
ance sheets as of June 30, 2008 and 2007 were as follows:

  Millions of
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars
 (Note 2) (Note 2)
 20082008 2007 20082008
Projected retirement benefi t obligation ‥‥  ¥6,407¥6,407 ¥1,216 $61$61
Fair value of Plan assets ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  (946)(946) – (9)(9)
Unrecognized actuarial differences ‥‥‥  226226 – 2
Net liability for retirement benefi ts ‥‥‥  ¥5,687 ¥5,687 ¥1,216 $54$54

Note: Some consolidated subsidiaries adopt the simple method to calculate projected benefi t obligation.

Net periodic costs for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 were as follows:

  Millions of
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars
 (Note 2) (Note 2)
 20082008 2007 20082008
Service costs–benefi ts earned during the year  ¥132¥132 ¥15 $1$1
Interest costs on projected benefi t obligation  4646 – 0
Expected return on retirement benefi t plan assets  (11)(11) – (0)(0)
Amortization of actuarial differences ‥‥  (54)(54) – (0)(0)
Net periodic benefi t costs ‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥113 ¥113 ¥15 $1$1

Note:  Retirement benefi t expenses of consolidated subsidiaries adopting the simple method are 
included in service costs.

The assumptions and basis used for the calculation of retirement benefi t obligation as of 
June 30, 2008 were as follows:

  20082008 2007
Allocation method for the projected retirement benefi ts  Straight-line method –
Discount rate ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  1.5% –
Expected return rate for plan assets ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  1.5% –
Amortization period for actuarial differences ‥‥‥  7 years –
  Straight-line method over
  a certain number of years –  within the average
  remaining service years

13. STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN
The shareholders of the Company approved a stock incentive plan on September 25, 2002. 
The options may be exercised during the period from October 2, 2004 until October 1, 
2008, and the exercise price was ¥1,695 ($16). The terms of options are subject to adjust-
ment if there are stock splits, consolidation of shares or additional shares issued at price 
less than the market price per share. The unexercised and outstanding balance of SAR, as 
of June 30, 2008, was 159,000 shares.

The shareholders of the Company approved a stock incentive plan on September 25, 
2003. The options may be exercised during the period from October 2, 2005 until October 1, 
2009, and the exercise price was ¥1,980 ($19). The terms of options are subject to adjust-
ment if there are stock splits, consolidation of shares or additional shares issued at price 
less than the market price per share. The unexercised and outstanding balance of SAR, as 
of June 30, 2008, was 396,900 shares.

The shareholders of the Company approved a stock incentive plan on September 28, 
2004. The options may be exercised during the period from October 2, 2006 until October 1, 
2016, and the exercise price was ¥1,970 ($19). The terms of options are subject to adjust-
ment if there are stock splits, consolidation of shares or additional shares issued at price 
less than the market price per share. The unexercised and outstanding balance of SAR, as 
of June 30, 2008, was 1,074,000 shares. 

The shareholders of the Company approved a stock incentive plan on September 29, 
2005. The options may be exercised during the period from October 2, 2007 until October 1, 
2017, and the exercise price was ¥3,134 ($30). The terms of options are subject to adjust-
ment if there are stock splits, consolidation of shares or additional shares issued at price 
less than the market price per share. The unexercised and outstanding balance of SAR, as 
of June 30, 2008, was 1,737,000 shares.

14. OTHER INCOME, NET
Other income, net for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 consisted of other income 
and other expense. Other income and other expense are as follows:
  Millions of
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars
 (Note 2) (Note 2)
 20082008 2007 20082008
Other income:
Rental fee for computer system ‥‥‥‥‥  ¥–¥– ¥1,219 $–$–
Amortization of negative goodwill ‥‥‥‥  1,1191,119 452 1111
Gain on sale of investments securities ‥‥‥  3131 27 0
Gain on SPE ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  172172 360 2
Gain from liquidation of SPE ‥‥‥‥‥‥  961961 – 9
Gain from debt extinguishment ‥‥‥‥‥  500500 – 5
Gain from changes in equity ‥‥‥‥‥‥  3 22 0
Other ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  1,6411,641 1,051 1414
Other income total ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  4,4274,427 3,131 4141

Other expense: 
Impairment loss ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  932932 – 9
Loss on close of stores ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  837837 111 8
Loss on disposal of fi xed assets ‥‥‥‥‥  258258 179 2
Loss on investments due to the equity method  160160 33 2
Settlement fees ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  360360 – 3
Other ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  976976 312 9
Other expense total ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  3,5233,523 635 3333
Other income, net ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥904¥904 ¥2,496 $8$8
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15. PLEDGED ASSETS
The assets pledged as collateral for the Company’s liabilities at June 30, 2008 and 2007 
were as follows:
  Millions of
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars
 (Note 2) (Note 2)
 20082008 2007 20082008
Time deposits ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥455¥455 ¥– $4$4
Land ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  3,1463,146 1,718 3030
Buildings and structures ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  758758 223 7
Fixed leasehold deposits ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  4,9984,998 – 4747
Other ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  136136 – 2
Total ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥9,493 ¥9,493 ¥1,941 $90$90

Liabilities related with the assets pledged at June 30, 2008 and 2007 were as follows: 

  Millions of
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars
 (Note 2) (Note 2)
 20082008 2007 20082008
Short-term loans ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥350¥350 ¥– $3$3
Current maturities of long-term debt ‥‥  244244 1,636 2
Long-term debt ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  – 3,119 –
Other current liabilities ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  600600 – 6
Other non-current liabilities ‥‥‥‥‥‥  6,0446,044 – 5858
Total ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥7,238¥7,238 ¥4,755 $69$69

16. INCOME TAXES

1.  The signifi cant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the 
years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

  Millions of
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars
 (Note 2) (Note 2)
 20082008 2007 20082008
Deferred tax assets (current assets):
Provision for enterprise taxes ‥‥‥‥‥  ¥68¥68 ¥357 $1$1
Allowance for bonus ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  6969 373 1
Inventories ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  1,1711,171 1,036 1111
Others ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  267267 375 2
Subtotal ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  1,5751,575 2,141 1515
Deferred tax assets (non-current assets):
Accrued retirement benefi ts for directors ‥  7474 63 1
Depreciation ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  122122 80 1
Impairment loss ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  154154 191 1
Net unrealized gains on investment securities 375375 (156) 4
Others ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  149149 184 1
Subtotal ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  874874 362 8
Total ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥2,449¥2,449 ¥2,503 $23$23

2.  A reconciliation of the difference between the statutory tax rate and the 
effective income tax rate refl ected in the accompanying statements of 
operation for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

 20082008 2007
Statutory tax rate ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  40.5%40.5% 40.5%
Permanent difference ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  0.0%0.0% 0.1%
Flat tax of inhabitant tax ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  2.8%2.8% 1.8%
Others ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  (0.2)%(0.2)% 0.9%
Effective income tax rate ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  43.1% 43.1% 43.3%

17. SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Major elements of selling, general and administrative expenses for fi scal 2008 and 2007 
were summarized as follows:
  Millions of
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars
 (Note 2) (Note 2)
 20082008 2007 20082008
Employees’ compensation and benefi t ‥‥‥  ¥32,305¥32,305 ¥20,606 $307$307
Occupancy and rental ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  16,13916,139 9,104 153153
Commission ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  11,04211,042 8,112 105105
Depreciation and amortization ‥‥‥‥‥‥  6,7736,773 5,033 6464
Allowance for doubtful accounts ‥‥‥‥‥  213213 9 2
Provision for retirement benefi ts for directors  3737 11 0
Provision for retirement benefi ts for employees  113113 15 1
Allowance for point program ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  2222 70 0
Other ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  26,08426,084 16,577 248248
Total ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥92,728¥92,728 ¥59,537 $880$880

18. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Related party transactions for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 were as follows:
  Millions of
 Millions of yen*5 U.S. dollars
 (Note 2) (Note 2)
 Related party Category Description of the Transaction 20082008 2007 20082008

Anryu Shoji 
 Company in which 

Co.,Ltd.*1 the chairman owns Rental real estate*2 ¥4¥4 ¥4  $0$0
 the majority votes.

Takao Yasuda Chairman of the Loan and collection*3 1,5001,500 – 1414
 Company Sale of affi liates’ stock 5555 – 1
 

Chairman is
 Rental real estate 1 – 0

Yasuda 
Takao Yasuda

 Commision income from 
3 – 0

Scholarship which is chairman detached employees service
Foundation of the Company Commission income 

1 – 0
  from offi ce service

Makoto Iwade Statutory auditor Attorney’s fee*4 3 3 0
Junzo Tabuchi Statutory auditor Tax accountant fee *4 – 1 –
World Victory 

Affi liate company Loan *6 200200 – 2Road Inc.

*1 Representative director of the Company, Takao Yasuda, essentially holds the 100% of vot-
ing stocks.  

*2 The contract for rental of real estate was signed on November 1, 2000.
*3 The Company loaned ¥1,500 million ($14 million) to Takao Yasuda, and collected the same 

amounts. Therefore, the amounts due from Takao Yasuda as of June 30, 2008 was zero.
*4 The amounts are based on arm’s lengths business conditions.
*5 Amounts of transactions don’t include consumption taxes.
*6 The loan contract was executed and interest rate was determined on market rate. As of June 

30, 2008, the amounts due from World Victory Road Inc. was ¥200 million ($2 million).

19. EARNINGS PER SHARE
The Company adopted the new rule of “Earnings per share” effective on April 1, 2002.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share 
showing the reconciliation of the numerators and denominators used for the computation.
Options issued in connection with the introduction of stock option plans that could poten-
tially dilute earnings per share were not included in the composition of diluted earnings per 
share because of its antidilutive effect on net income.
  Millions of
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars
 (Note 2) (Note 2)
 20082008 2007 20082008
Net income ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥9,303¥9,303 ¥10,638 $88$88
Net income after adjustments of effects of 

dilutive securities ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥9,303¥9,303 ¥10,638 $88$88

 20082008 2007
Weighted average number of shares ‥‥‥‥‥‥  71,132,93071,132,930 71,448,396
Effect of dilutive securities:

Stock options ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  170,769170,769 407,831
Convertible bonds ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  4,951,3224,951,322 5,053,800

Diluted weighted average number of shares ‥‥‥  76,255,02176,255,021 76,910,027

  U.S. dollars
 Yen (Note 2) (Note 2)
 20082008 2007 20082008
Shareholders’ equity per share ‥‥‥‥  ¥1,200.46¥1,200.46 ¥1,146.07 $11.40$11.40
Basic earnings per share ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  130.78130.78 148.89 1.241.24
Diluted earnings per share ‥‥‥‥‥‥  122.00122.00 138.32 1.161.16

20. SUPPLEMENTARY PROFIT AND LOSS INFORMATION

Major items included in “Gain on sales of fi xed assets” are as follows:

  Millions of
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars
 (Note 2) (Note 2)
 20082008 2007 20082008
Buildings and structures ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥–¥– ¥80 $–$–
Equipment ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  – 0 –
Land ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  – 2,736 –
Total ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥–¥– ¥2,816 $–$–

The gain on sales of fi xed assets for the fi scal year ended June 30, 2007 was resulted 
from the sale of Ginza brand-kan store due to its closure.
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Major items included in “Loss on disposal of fi xed assets” are as follows:

  Millions of
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars
 (Note 2) (Note 2)
 20082008 2007 20082008
Buildings and structures ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥123 ¥123 ¥97 $1$1
Equipment ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  126126 81 1
Others ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  9 1 0
Total ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥258¥258 ¥179 $2$2

Major items included in “Loss on close of stores” are as follows:

  Millions of
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars
 (Note 2) (Note 2)
 20082008 2007 20082008
Buildings and structures ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥339¥339 ¥50 $3$3
Equipment ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  149149 – 1
Others ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  349349 61 4
Total ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥837¥837 ¥111 $8$8

Major items included in “Impairment loss” are as follows: 

  Millions of
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars
 (Note 2) (Note 2)
 20082008 2007 20082008
Buildings and structures ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥497¥497 – $5$5
Construction in progress ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  232232 – 2
Software ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  9595 – 1
Equipment ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  8787 – 1
Others ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  2121 – 0
Total ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥932¥932 – $9$9

21. CASH FLOW INFORMATION
1) Cash and cash equivalent information
Cash fl ow information as of June 30, 2008 and 2007 were summarized as follows:

  Millions of
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars
 (Note 2) (Note 2)
 20082008 2007 20082008
Cash and time deposits ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥38,381¥38,381 ¥38,164 $364$364
Pledged Time deposits (over three months)  (295)(295) – (2)(2)
Cash and cash equivalents ‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥38,086 ¥38,086 ¥38,164 $362$362

2) Signifi cant non-cash investing and fi nancing activities
1. Conversion of convertible bonds
 Increase in common stock and capital surplus due to conversion of convertible bonds 

for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

  Millions of
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars
 (Note 2) (Note 2)
 20082008 2007 20082008
Common stock ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥52¥52 ¥53 $0$0
Additional paid-in capital ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  5353 52 1
Total ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥105¥105 ¥105 $1$1

2. Acquisition of Nagasakiya Co., LTD. 
 The summarized assets and liabilities of Nagasakiya Co., LTD. and subsidiaries at the 

start of their consolidation to the Company are as follows: 

  Millions of
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars
 (Note 2) (Note 2)
Current assets ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥12,362 $117¥12,362 $117
Non-current assets ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  32,174 30532,174 305
Current liabilities ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  (14,501) (138)(14,501) (138)
Non-current liabilities ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  (14,326) (136) (14,326) (136)
Negative goodwill ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  (2,147) (20)(2,147) (20)
Minority interest ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  (1,078) (10)(1,078) (10)
Acquisition cost of Nagasakiya Co., LTD. and its subsidiaries ‥  12,484 11912,484 119
Cash and cash equivalents of Nagasakiya Co., LTD. 

and its subsidiaries ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  (1,222) (12)(1,222) (12)
Payments for the acquisition ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥11,261 $107¥11,261 $107

22. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

1. Acquisition of shares in subsidiary
Pursuant to the resolution of the Board of Directors at a meeting held on August 25, 2008, 
the Company will acquire all shares of a newly established corporation “BIG1 CO., LTD.” by 
the corporate separation from the discount business of hallo FOODS Co., Ltd. (Head Offi ce: 
3-1, Urasato, Midori-ku, Nagoya-city, Aichi, Representative Director: Teruyuki Himeno) and 
dipal Co., Ltd. (1529, Kaminosho, Iga-city, Mie, Representative Director: Shinji Ishida ). BIG1 
CO., LTD. will be established after the approval of extraordinary meeting of shareholders.

(1) Business results 

 Millions of yen (Note 2) Millions of U.S. dollars (Note 2)
 The twelve months ended The twelve months ended
 February 29, 2008 February 29, 2008
Sales ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  ¥12,217 $116¥12,217 $116
Operating income ‥‥‥‥  108 1108 1
Recurring income ‥‥‥  118 1118 1

(2) Schedule of acquisition
August 25, 2008: resolution of the Board of directors meeting
August 25, 2008: execution of share transfer agreement
October 6, 2008: completion of separation 
October 15, 2008: title will be transferred

2. Issuance of Bond
Pursuant to the resolution of the Board of Directors at a meeting held on September 16, 
2008, unsecured straight bonds are issued as follows:

(1) 27th unsecured straight bond
1. Aggregate amount of issue: ¥2,000 million ($19 million)
2. Price at issue: ¥100 of par value
3. Coupon rate: 1.38% per annum
4. Term: 5 years
5. Redemption: Scheduled repayment
6. Due date of funding: September 25, 2008
7. Purpose of fund: Capital investment

(2) 28th unsecured straight bond
1. Aggregate amount of issue: ¥2,000 million ($19 million)
2. Price at issue: ¥100 of par value
3. Coupon rate: 1.24% per annum
4. Term: 5 years
5. Redemption: Scheduled repayment
6. Due date of funding: September 30, 2008
7. Purpose of fund: Capital investment

(3) 29th unsecured straight bond
1. Aggregate amount of issue: ¥1,500 million ($14 million)
2. Price at issue: ¥100 of par value
3. Coupon rate: 1.39% per annum
4. Term: 5 years
5. Redemption: Scheduled repayment
6. Due date of funding: October 7, 2008
7. Purpose of fund: Capital investment
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23. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segment information
For the fi scal years of 2007, net sales, operating income, and total assets of the discount store business accounted for more than 90% of those of all the segments. Consequently, details of 
each business segment information are not given in this report.

Operating segment information for the consolidated fi scal year ended June 30, 2008 is summarized as follows:

As of and for the year ended June 30, 2008

 Millions of yen (Note 2)
 Discount Retail stores Retail superstore Rental business Others Total Corporate Eliminations Consolidated
1. Sales, Operating profi t and loss

Sales
Sales to third parties ¥331,446¥331,446 ¥60,092 ¥11,554 ¥1,832 ¥404,924 ¥– ¥404,924¥60,092 ¥11,554 ¥1,832 ¥404,924 ¥– ¥404,924
Intersegment sales 147147 62 2,014 1,949 4,172 (4,172) –62 2,014 1,949 4,172 (4,172) –

Total 331,593 60,154 13,568 3,781 409,096 (4,172) 404,924331,593 60,154 13,568 3,781 409,096 (4,172) 404,924
Operating expenses 317,656 59,567 12,773 3,313 393,309 (4,366) 388,943317,656 59,567 12,773 3,313 393,309 (4,366) 388,943
Operating income 13,937 587 795 468 15,787 194 15,98113,937 587 795 468 15,787 194 15,981

2. Assets, depreciation and amortization,
loss on impairment of fi xed assets,
and capital expenditure
Assets 196,718 49,373 23,681 4,586 274,358 1,930 276,288196,718 49,373 23,681 4,586 274,358 1,930 276,288
Depreciation and amortization 5,693 524 959 89 7,265 (15) 7,2505,693 524 959 89 7,265 (15) 7,250
Loss on impairment of fi xed assets 693 125 19 95 932 – 932693 125 19 95 932 – 932
Capital expenditure 15,911 637 3,600 119 20,267 (160) 20,10715,911 637 3,600 119 20,267 (160) 20,107

As of and for the year ended June 30, 2008

 Millions of U.S dollars (Note 2)
 Discount Retail stores Retail superstore Rental business Others Total Corporate Eliminations Consolidated
1. Sales, Operating profi t and loss

Sales
Sales to third parties $3,147$3,147 $570 $110 $17 $3,844 $– $3,844$570 $110 $17 $3,844 $– $3,844
Intersegment sales 1 1 19 19 40 (40) –1 19 19 40 (40) –

Total 3,148 571 129 36 3,884 (40) 3,8443,148 571 129 36 3,884 (40) 3,844
Operating expenses 3,016 565 121 32 3,734 (42) 3,6923,016 565 121 32 3,734 (42) 3,692
Operating income 132 6 8 4 150 2 152132 6 8 4 150 2 152

2. Assets, depreciation and amortization,
loss on impairment of fi xed assets,
and capital expenditure
Assets 1,868 469 225 43 2,605 18 2,6231,868 469 225 43 2,605 18 2,623
Depreciation and amortization 54 5 9 1 69 (0) 6954 5 9 1 69 (0) 69
Loss on impairment of fi xed assets 7 1 0 1 9 – 97 1 0 1 9 – 9
Capital expenditure 151 6 34 1 192 (1) 191151 6 34 1 192 (1) 191

Geographic segment information
For the fi scal years of 2008 and 2007, net sales and assets in Japan accounted for more than 90% of those of all the segments. Consequently, details of each geographic segment informa-
tion are not presented.

Sales outside Japan
For the fi scal years of 2008 and 2007, sales outside of Japan amounted less than 10% of the consolidated net sales, and therefore the information is not presented.
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Corporate Information

Corporate Data (as of June 30, 2008)

COMPANY NAME
Don Quijote Co., Ltd.

SCOPE OF BUSINESS
Operation of discount stores, which sell electrical appliances, daily commodities, foods, watches, 

fashion merchandise, sporting goods, leisure equipment, DIY products and others.

HEAD OFFICE
2-6-1, Nishishinjuku, Shinjuku-ku, Tokyo

163-0235, Japan

Te l: +81-3-5381-7532

Fax: +81-3-5381-7606

DATE OF ESTABLISHMENT
September 5, 1980

PAID-IN CAPITAL
¥14,818,561 thousand

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
2,293

NUMBER OF STORES (Consolidated basis)

223

Board of Directors (as of September 26, 2008)

Chairman of the Board and CEO

Takao Yasuda

President and COO

Junji Narusawa

Senior Managing Director and CFO

Mitsuo Takahashi

Managing Director and CCO

Sumio Inamura

Standing Statutory Auditor

Junzo Tabuchi

Statutory Auditors

Masaru Ueno

Makoto Iwade

Yoshihiro Hongo
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Share Information (as of June 30, 2008)

SHARES OF COMMON STOCK
Authorized :  234,000,000

Issued :  72,022,209

Treasury stock :  2,936,729

NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS
5,989

PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS
  Percentage of
 Number of total shares in issue
 shares held (%)

Takao Yasuda ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  12,432,000 17.26

La Mancha ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  9,000,000 12.49

The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd.* ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  6,075,600 8.43

Anryu Shoji Co., Ltd. ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  4,140,000 5.74

Don Quijote Co., Ltd. ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  2,936,729 4.07

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd.* ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  2,542,500 3.53

UBS AG Hong Kong ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  2,390,000 3.31

BBH for Fidelity Low-price Stock Fund ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  2,203,100 3.05

Yasuda Scholarship Foundation ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  1,800,000 2.49

Trust & Custody Services Bank, Ltd.* ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  1,775,400 2.46

*Shares held by these institutions include shares in trust.

SHARE OWNERSHIP BY CATEGORY
   Percentage of
 Number of Number of total shares in issue
 shareholders shares held (%)

Financial Institutions  ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  48 16,215,724 22.51

Financial Products Trader‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  34 439,634 0.61

Other Japanese Corporations  ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  76 6,139,756 8.52

Foreign Corporations and Individuals ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  202 30,312,543 42.09

Japanese Individuals and Others  ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  5,629 18,914,552 26.27

Total ‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥‥  5,989 72,022,209 100.00

TRANSFER AGENT
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation

1-4-5, Marunouchi, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-8212, Japan

STOCK LISTINGS
Tokyo Stock Exchange, First Section
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